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Corporate Information (continued)
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B CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

FRHBES

Dear investors,

Time awaits for no one, and the seasons keep changing. It’s really not
easy in 2020, during which the coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19)
epidemic together with the suddenly intensified Sino-US rivalry made the
entire economic environment full of various uncertainties and turbulences.
Facing the huge pressures, VSTECS people spared no effort to support the
Company’s operations by upholding the original intentions, working together
in a harmony way, living out a dream and pursuing it to the fullest, and
achieved a more impressive result with a healthier operation. In the fiscal
year 2020, VSTECS overcame the effects of the epidemic, and recorded a
new high in its turnover and net profit by cooperating with more partners in
the technology industry to continue with creating values. During the reporting
period, the turnover of the Company was HK$70.0 billion, representing a
year-on-year increase of 6%. The net profit after taxation attributable to
shareholders was HK$1.07 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of
32%. Return on Equity (ROE) was 16.5%. These achievements were mainly
due to (i) the Company effectively reduced its financial costs along with
continuously improving its operation and management level. Through strict
risk control and efficiency improvement, the Company have continuously
optimized its inventory turnover days and operation days, and enhanced
its capital turnover capacity. The Company’s financial capital management
system has led to a steady decline in the financial expense ratio, which
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in turn provided a solid guarantee for its business development, and the
Company’s management expense ratio (i.e. administrative expenses) has
also gradually declined. (ii) there was a strong demand for IT infrastructure
construction and cloud services in China and Southeast Asia, which is in
line with the Company’s long-term prediction of the development trend of
the electronic information industry; and (iii) owing to its upgraded but not
transformed operations and enhanced service capabilities, the Company
has successfully completed many large-scale service projects, providing
supports to the enterprises in their digital transformations.

In terms of product segments, the cloud computing segment and the
enterprise systems segment have developed rapidly with double-digit growth.
VSTECS seized the opportunities brought by the rapid development of big
data and the cloud computing technology. In 2020, the cloud computing
segment maintained a strong growth, recording a turnover increase of 40%
to HK$1.7 billion (2019: HK$1.2 billion). The revenue from the enterprise
systems segment continued to record a new high of HK$40.9 billion (2019:
HK$35.6 billion), representing a year-on-year increase of 15%. The revenues
from the enterprise systems segment and the cloud computing segment
accounted for more than 60% of the Company’s overall business.

In terms of region segments, during the reporting period, the turnover from
North Asia increased by 6%, and the turnover from Southeast Asia increased
by 3%. Although the epidemic once delayed certain product demands and
service deliveries of customers in China and Southeast Asian, the customer
demands rebounded significantly in the second quarter as China became
the first country that brought the epidemic under its control. VSTECS swiftly
tapped the market opportunities and adopted a series of targeted measures.
In the second half of the year, the Company achieved a rapid rebound in
terms of turnover and played a nice strike back. The product demand will
gradually recover as there is a considerable demand for IT infrastructure
in the Southeast Asian market. As a leading channel provider in Southeast
Asia, the Company stands out with its economies of scale and channel
value, and thereby significantly improved its profit level. In the future, the
Company will continue to benefit from the rapid growth in the demand for
IT infrastructure construction in China and Southeast Asia.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FTEHREE(E)

The year 2021 is the 30th anniversary of the establishment of the VSTECS
Group. As nature’s movement is ever vigorous, so must a gentleman
ceaselessly strives along. Following the major trend of making the country
prosperous and the people strong, and surfing in the tide of turmoil, VSTECS,
which is committed to leading the digitalization of Asia, has embarked on
a path of vigorous development. Throughout 30 years of magnificence,
VSTECS strived with a diligent attitude from the role of distributor, general
agent, and channel provider to leading technology service force in the Asia-
Pacific region. Thanks to the full supports from its partners along the way,
VSTECS has managed to overcome all hurdles and made a great success.

Since its listing in 2002, VSTECS has experienced several global crises,
including but not limited to, the financial tsunami, the tech bubble, the
Sino-US trade disputes and the COVID-19 epidemic. The Company has
endured great hardships but eventually overcame all obstacles and difficult.
However, VSTECS has never been afraid of adversity, and its turnover
increased rapidly from HK$1.6 billion in 2002 to HK$70.0 billion in 2020,
with an average annual growth rate of 28%. Without doubt, the Company
has played a decisive influence in the industry. With this trend of rapid
development, VSTECS Group will grasp the opportunity, stride forward
proudly, and make a greater achievement.

During the reporting period, the Company carried out its business as
scheduled in the established strategic direction, and the main progresses
were as follows:

1.  Strategically expand new products and
continuously deploy in emerging technology
fields

With the strong supports of leading upstream high-tech vendors,
the Company is among top tiers in the industry in terms of turnover.
VSTECS is the most important partner of more than 300 Fortune
500 technology companies in the Asia-Pacific region, including
Huawei, Alibaba, H3C, Tencent, Sugon, Lenovo, HP, Dell, Microsoft,
Apple, Oracle, Seagate, Western Digital, etc. In the fiscal year
2020, VSTECS will continue to expand its product portfolio with
the worldwide important technology product suppliers as its focus,
and deploy in the emerging technology fields, such as the cloud
computing, big data, Al, etc. Through deepening cooperation with
leading cloud vendors, such as Alibaba Cloud, Huawei Cloud, AWS,
Microsoft Azure, etc., and establishing a master agency relationship
with Easystack in China, the Company can provide more cutting-
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edge and professional cloud services for the corporate customers
in the industry. The Company cooperated with XYLink to improve
the cloud video layout. With a forward-looking and precise business
vision, VSTECS firmly grasped the trend of industry development and
clearly understood the essence of cross-border cooperation. The
Company not only continued to refresh ideas about the industry,
but also set up a new weathercock for cross-border cooperation.

In terms of consumer electronics, VSTECS is the only ICT distribution
group in the world that has the agency rights of three global game
console brands (i.e. Nintendo Switch, PS4 and XBOX). In 2020, the
Company continued to promote Nintendo Switch Ring Fit Adventure
of Tencent, and also entered into cooperation with the leading
brands of personal health intelligent massager (i.e. SKG), desktop
3D printing manufacturer (i.e. Formlabs) and smart screen (i.e.
SMART technology), with a view to build a long-term cooperation
and development prospect. As the master agent of Thomas Design
electric vehicles, VSTECS (Thailand) also helped CATL with promoting
the regional leasing model through its own marketing channels in
China. Through keeping a foothold in distribution services, relying
on information platforms, continuing to reduce transaction costs,
and building a one-stop distribution service system for all product
categories, VSTECS is not only committed to the development of
the industry, but also provides benefits to all-inclusive partners. The
goal is to create an efficient, sustained and diversified closed-loop
business ecosystem for all-inclusive partners.

In-depth cooperation between & £ {35 and
VSTECS service system provides full-life cycle
services for corporate customers

During the reporting period, VSTECS carried out in-depth cooperation
with leading cloud service providers, such as Alibaba Cloud, Huawei
Cloud, AWS, Azure, Oracle Cloud, VMware, Easystack, Zstack,
Veeam, etc., and rapidly expanded its operation scale through its
powerful channel system. By the fact of Alibaba Cloud’s expanding
its business from China to Singapore and Philippines of Southeast
Asia, it is enough to prove that VSTECS has a broad channel system
and an excellent service standard.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FTEHREE(E)

In the field of the cloud computing, VSTECS is dedicated to
becoming a leading technology service company in the Asia-Pacific
region. Through a deep understanding of the digital development
of enterprises, VSTECS can effectively leverage its advantages on
service capabilities. In recent years, the Company has strengthened
the cloud computing and digital transformation business layout,
with a view of providing enterprise customers with full-life cycle
services and a full-region and full-cycle product system. The
Company provided comprehensive cloud-to-end information
system solutions and construction services for customers in various
industries. The service end customers in fiscal year 2020 include
100+ benchmark customers, namely Beijing Benz Automotive Co.,
Ltd., State Grid, China Resources Vanguard, ThyssenKrupp (China)
Ltd., Industrial Bank and Shanghai Pudong Development Bank. All
these represented that the Company was driving a swift and steady
pace of development.

In 2020, in order to cope with the complicated economic situation,
we focused on the internal and external virtues, which means while
deepening cooperation with our partners, we made painstaking
efforts to strength our capacity. On the one hand, we continued to
promote the products of leading cloud service providers such as
Alibaba Cloud and Huawei Cloud in our channels, and deepened
cooperation and mutual penetration with them, so that they can
quickly expand their business scale via the well-established channel
system of VSTECS. On the other hand, based on our own technical
capabilities and product accumulation, we expanded its MSP
business, and established a more close connection between cloud
service providers and customers through our empowerment of cloud
service providers.
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According to our judgment that the multi-cloud and hybrid cloud
architecture will coexist in China’s cloud industry for a long time
in the future, the Group has added a new subsidiary, 1t ZERE
EHBERERAR (MERNEEL”) , and acquired all businesses,
intellectual property rights and personnel associated with cloud
computing of EE2&E ORI BRAR (“EE2FY”) , aleading
cloud management platform software and service provider in the
PRC. Through the acquisition of &£ £, the Company has centralized
and optimized its multi-cloud management technology, as well as
effectively strengthened its service capabilities in the cloud computing
field. Take the cost housekeeper of SaaS version released by
VSTECSZEE on the Alibaba Cloud market as an example, there
are currently more than tens of thousands of users. This tool allows
customers to clearly understand real-time cloud strategies, flexibly
allocate cloud resources, and effectively save 20%-30% of cost for
using the public cloud.

In the future, we will continue to improve our service system
and provide end customers with full-life cycle cloud services. In
addition, as a platform company in the TO B field, we have more
than 50,000 downstream channel partners in the areas where we
operate. We have reasonably expected that they can follow the pace
of the VSTECS cloud strategy and launch standardized product
empowerment channels.

The broad IT infrastructure market in
Southeast Asia continues to help the digital
transformation and upgrading of the Belt and
Road countries

In Southeast Asia, VSTECS has completed the transformation from
the role of distributor of more than 300 Fortune 500 technology
companies to service cooperation partner. The strong service
capabilities resulting from VSTECS’s abundant resources of leading
upstream technology vendors and experienced engineer team in
the region, can provide high-quality ICT infrastructure installation,
design and implementation services to customers with various needs.
During the reporting period, we continued to facilitate the digital
transformation of various fields in the Belt and Road countries,
including government, finance, communication, transportation,
medical and other industries. For example, we assisted a certain
country’s government authority in conducting the comprehensive
hardware and software upgrades for the network security system,
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FTEHREE(E)

and provide solutions for the private cloud project of a foreign bank
data center. The leading resource advantage is not only the base on
which VSTECS can achieve outstanding results, but also the sound
capital position for us to make greater achievements the future.

With excellent capabilities in cloud services and digital application
solutions, VSTECS (Thailand) was awarded the 2020 Microsoft
Partner of the Year Award (Thailand). Microsoft mentioned in its
award speech: in the past year, VSTECS (Thailand) has undergone a
material digital upgrade, thereafter became a cloud solution provider
(CSP) that can empower its channel partners, and made remarkable
achievements in terms of revenue contribution and market coverage.
During the reporting period, it was VSTECS (Thailand) that recruited
the most cloud partners and customers in the region. Through its
unique recruitment model, VSTECS (Thailand) recruited independent
software developers to help it transferring from local to the cloud,
so that ACR products increased at a year-on-year growth rate of
173%. It is a testimony that the core competitive edges of VSTECS
are not only limited to the professional field, but also reflected in the
value level of the Company’s sustained and rapid development, which
is condensed with rich wisdom wealth and cultural connotations.

In-depth layout of IT innovation industry

The year 2020 is the first year of implementing IT innovation in China.
VSTECS has secured a number of large orders of basic hardware,
basic software and industry application software in IT innovation
industry, including the relevant products from H3C, Lenovo server,
Ruijie, Inspur, Huawei, Kingsoft, etc. During the reporting period, the
Company entered into cooperations with many leading IT innovation
vendors, such as Powerleader Computing, Primeton Middleware,
Goke and DBAPPSecurity.
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As the master agent of H3C, the Company has helped H3C achieve
rapid growth in product sales and even double the sales of high-
quality H3C UniServer series servers developed by H3C. In 2020,
driven by the cooperation with SmartX, a leading hyper-converged
and distributed storage vendor in the mid-to-high end market in
China, VSTECS’ results increased by 70%, and ranked at number
1 with a share in the financial industry hyper-converged software
market of 18.3%. Meanwhile, VSTECS was the first one to implement
the financial production-level IT innovation cloud case that meets IT
innovation standards in the securities industry.

VSTECS is one of the largest security product distributors in China
and works closely with major cyber security vendors, such as
NSFocus, Qi An Xin and Hillstone, and provides a full range of cyber
security products and enterprise application security solutions to
100,000 customers in 3,000 national channels (including government,
operation, finance, energy, internet, education, medical and other
industries). In terms of software products developed in China, we
currently have a total of 70+ contracted product lines, and enter
into cooperation with three largest brands in all categories, such as
databases, middleware, storage, and operating systems. VSTECS
adheres to its commitment to care for and support the partners,
and further fuel their business growth.

As one leader of the industry, VSTECS understands its mission
bestowed by the history and the era. We are not only witnesses to
the development of the industry, but also participants and builders of
it. Leaving behind the past 30 years, we embark on a new journey.
It is VSTECS’s honor to work with partners to achieve the next level.

Li Jialin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 March 2021
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BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGIC DIRECTION

XEGEBRARERLSR

The Group is a leading Information, Communication and Technology (“ICT”)
products and services provider, serving a wide regional customer base.
The Group has over 80 offices in nine countries namely China, Thailand,
Malaysia, Singapore, Indonesia, Philippines, Cambodia, Myanmar and Laos.
The three main businesses are Enterprise Systems, Consumer Electronics
and Cloud Computing. The Enterprise Systems segment designs, installs and
implements IT infrastructure for companies, while the Consumer Electronics
segment and the Cloud Computing Segment provide various finished IT
products and cloud computing solutions and services to customers. Leading
IT vendors such as Huawei, Alibaba, Tencent, HP, Apple, Seagate, AMD,
Western Digital, Lenovo, Dell, IBM, Acer, Microsoft, Oracle, Cisco, Asus
and many more use the Group’s network of over 50,000 channel partners
in the region to distribute their products.

As the leading distributor of ICT products in the region, we have established,
through our reseller channel, a broad customer base ranging from individuals,
small and medium enterprises to large corporations and government entities
who have been serviced by our regional resellers over the past 29 years.

Our infrastructure is built on a fully integrated Enterprise Resource Planning
system to manage our sales, distribution, finance and logistic operations to
provide efficient customer services with speed and reliability.

We have an extensive distribution network of over 50,000 resellers, comprising
retailers, system integrators and corporate dealers. These resellers not only
market a wide range of products but they also provide support and repair
services to the end-users.

The Group creates sustainable value for shareholders through the following
strategies:

° Focus on our key markets in China and South East Asia

° Focus on our extensive list of vendors to expand our product portfolio
° Focus on strengthening our working capital and financial management
° Focus on improving operating efficiencies and cost management
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review

The Group has recorded another record high in revenue. The Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020 was HK$69,961,881,000
(2019: HK$66,209,921,000). Gross profit for the year ended 31 December
2020 amounted to HK$3,127,313,000 (2019: HK$2,967,854,000). Operating
profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to HK$1,420,354,000
(2019: HK$1,260,212,000). Net profit for the year ended 31 December 2020
amounted to HK$1,067,580,000 (2019: HK$809,948,000). Basic earnings
per share for the year ended 31 December 2020 was HK75.54 cents (2019:
HK57.03 cents) per share.

During the year, revenue from the enterprise systems segment increased
by 15% to HK$40,914,823,000, contributing 58.5% of the total Group
revenue. Revenue from the consumer electronics segment decreased
by 7% to HK$27,364,638,000, contributing 39.1% of the total Group
revenue. Revenue from the cloud computing segment increased by 40%
to HK$1,682,420,000, contributing 2.4% of the total Group revenue.

Geographically, both North Asia and South East Asia performed well in
the year ended 31 December 2020. During the year, revenue generated
in North Asia increased by 6% to HK$55,354,208,000, contributing 79%
of the total Group revenue. Revenue from South East Asia increased by
3% to HK$14,607,673,000, contributing 21% of the total Group revenue.
The Group has continuously aimed to widen our product range in order
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EBENRR DN (E)

to provide more choices to our customers. Our extensive and diversified
product lines now include Huawei, Alibaba, Tencent, HP, Apple, Seagate,
AMD, Western Digital, Lenovo, Dell, IBM, Acer, Microsoft, Oracle, Cisco,
Asus and many more.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The directors are aware that the Group is exposed to various risks, including
some which are specific to the Group or the industries in which the Group
operates as well as others that are common to most if not all other businesses.
The directors have established a policy to ensure that significant risks which
may adversely affect the Group’s performance and ability to deliver on its
strategies, as well as those which may present positive opportunities, are
identified, reported, monitored, and managed on a continuous basis.

The Group has been closely monitoring any potential impact of the coronavirus
disease 2019 (COVID-19) outbreak on the Group’s businesses and will keep
evaluating the impact as situation continues to evolve and further information
may become available.

The financial risk management policies and practices of the Group are shown
in note 3 to the financial statements.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and
Regulations

As far as the directors and management are aware, the Group has complied
in all material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operations of the Group. During the
year, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations by the Group.

16 VSTECS Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2020

mAEY - BRAEFPRERHEEZERE - MKW
F/Z&ﬁﬁ{héuufvﬁfﬁ %'ﬁi}% fif 2 - Hé

Bl BE CER - A - AMD - AIEE -
%78 - FE IBM -~ ZE - E® - BEX
BR - HEESE o

TERRRIARERE

EEHENASEEHZERR  BELH
DASEIEREMBTERE ZRR - A
RBARMOHEMEBER 2 EMRR - EF
2 HIE B *ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘ﬁi*&ﬁ
AE EHAKRERE  BRHERE ZE
ARELRZEEERTNEEZERNEAR

REF—EEYVER_ZT-NEFIKRFSH
(COVID-19) B # B AE B XKW ELER
2 UHKEEBRBERZEREERE
FERMBETEZE o

25 98 18 2 8 75 A I B2 B B 5B 75
M S -
BREMBEEERER
REHREREMN  AEEDERAEA
FERTHARAEBREEEEALE Y

MEERNER - FA AEEREHREE
EROER -

R EsTEm




Relationships with Suppliers, Customers and other
Stakeholders

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good relationship
with its suppliers and customers to meet its immediate and long-term goals.
Regular and continuous communication with our suppliers, customers and
other stakeholders are carried out through regular meetings, conferences,
and promotional events.

Environmental, Social and Corporate Responsibility

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintain the highest
environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable development of
its business. The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations
in relation to its business including health and safety, workplace conditions,
employment and the environment. The Group understands a better future
depends on everyone’s participation and contribution. It has encouraged
employees, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders to participate in
environmental and social activities which benefit the community as a whole.

Prospects

Our extensive portfolio of products and network will enable us to continue to
drive growth for the Group. We will continue to execute strategies to increase
market shares as well as the range of products and services offered. This will
enable the Group to continue to focus on growth in all business segments.

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EIEJEL—J;DH& $ﬁ(n‘a)

Our strategy remains to constantly redefine our value proposition as a trusted
partner with strong relationships and deep understanding of our customers’
needs. Strategically we will continue to expand in China and South East
Asia. We will continue to work actively to improve internal operational and
financial efficiencies to improve margins. We will also continue to expand
our business into consumer electronics and cloud computing.

With our experienced and dedicated management team, we are confident
that we will be able to continue to grow our business.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were
approximately HK$3,559,192,000 (2019: approximately HK$2,327,702,000).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s borrowings amounted to approximately
HK$6,750,812,000 (2019: approximately HK$8,017,112,000). The net debt
to total asset ratio, calculated as borrowings less cash and cash equivalents
divided by total assets, was 0.11 as at 31 December 2020 (2019: 0.23).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group recorded total current
assets of approximately HK$27,226,513,000 (2019: approximately
HK$22,867,335,000) and total current liabilities of approximately
HK$22,392,619,000 (2019: approximately HK$17,605,315,000). The
current ratio of the Group, calculated by dividing the total current assets by
the total current liabilities, was approximately 1.22 times as at 31 December
2020 (2019: approximately 1.30 times).

The Group recorded an increase in shareholders’ funds from approximately
HK$5,654,472,000 as at 31 December 2019 to approximately
HK$6,826,286,000 as at 31 December 2020.
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Treasury Policies

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
resources and banking facilities provided by banks in the PRC, Hong Kong,
Singapore, Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia and the Philippines. The bank
borrowings of the Group are predominantly subject to floating interest rates.

Cash and bank deposits of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, United States dollars, Renminbi, Singapore dollars, Thailand
baht and Indonesian rupiah.

Transactions of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars, Renminbi, Singapore dollars, Thailand baht and
Indonesian rupiah.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had certain financial assets pledged
for financial liabilities and a building pledged against secured mortgage loan
as set out in notes 3.4 and 19 to the financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any contingent liabilities.

Employees

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 3,414 (2019: 3,352) full time
employees.

The Group remunerates its employees mainly based on industry practice,
individual’s performance and experience. Apart from the basic remuneration,
discretionary bonuses and share options may be granted to eligible employees
by reference to the Group’s performance as well as individual performance.
Other benefits include medical, annual leave and retirement schemes. The
net total remuneration paid for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted
to approximately HK$863,140,000 (2019: approximately HK$909,632,000).
The Group also provides training courses or seminars to its staff.

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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B BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY

EERAOFIRERE

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Jialin, aged 59, is one of the founders of the
Group and is the Company’s Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director. Mr. Li is
also the director of VST Computers (H.K.) Limited
(“VST Computers”), a subsidiary of the Company.
He is responsible for the overall management and
strategic positioning of the Group. Mr. Li graduated
from Tsinghua University of the People’s Republic of
China with a Degree of Bachelor of Engineering in
1983 and a Master Degree in Management Engineering in 1986. Mr. Li is
the father of Mr. Li Yue, an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. ONG Wei Hiam, William, aged 49, is an
Executive Director and the Group Chief Financial
Officer of the Company. Mr. Ong is also the director
of VST Computers, a subsidiary of the Company. He
is responsible for the overall financial management
of the Group. Mr. Ong holds a Bachelor Degree in
Economics from University College London and a
Master Degree in Analysis, Design & Management
of Information Systems from the London School
of Economics and Political Science. Mr. Ong is a fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. LI Yue, aged 32, appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in May 2016. Mr. Li joined
the Company in 2012 and is currently the Vice
President — Channel Sales of VST Computers, a
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Li is responsible
for sales and distribution in Hong Kong. He holds a
Bachelor of Arts in Economics from the University
of Chicago in the United States of America. Mr. Li
is also a CFA charterholder. He is a member of the
CFA Institute and the Hong Kong Society of Financial Analysts. Mr. Li is
the son of Mr. Li Jialin, the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive
Director of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)

Mr. CHAN Hoi Chau, aged 51, is an Executive
Director of the Company. He holds a Bachelor
Degree in Electrical Engineering from the University of
Wisconsin-Madison in the United States of America.
Mr. Chan has over 20 years of experience in personal
computer and semiconductor industry. Mr. Chan
is currently the Senior Vice President — Product
Management of VST Computers (H.K.) Limited,
a subsidiary of the Company. Prior to joining the
Company in 2005, Mr. Chan served as the distribution director of Advanced
Micro Devices and was in charge of the distribution business in China and
Hong Kong.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. XIA Bin, aged 44, appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company in October 2020.
Mr. Xia obtained his qualification as a lawyer in
the People’s Republic of China in 2001. Mr. Xia
obtained a Bachelor of Law from Luoyang Institute
of Technology (now known as Henan University of
Science and Technology) in 1999 and a degree
of Master of Law from China University of Political
Science and Law in 2008. Mr. Xia has extensive legal
in-house experience in corporations and enterprises.
Mr. Xia is currently a deputy general manager and secretary of the board
of directors of Shenzhen Eternal Asia Supply Chain Management Ltd. (&
Y tae Bt FESER () AR A F)) (“Shenzhen Eternal Asia”), whose shares
are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Shenzhen Eternal Asia is a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Xia is also a director of Yunnan
Ben Yuan Payment Management Co., Ltd. (EEATXNEBAR AT, a
company principally engaged in internet payment and financial services. Mr.
Xia is also a non-executive Director of Trigiant Group Limited, the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)
EERATNERE (&)

Mr. CHEUNG Wing Lee Isaiah, aged 53,
appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Company in March 2021. Mr. Cheung graduated
from the Queen’s University in Kingston, Canada
with a Bachelor of Science degree with honours in
Computer Engineering in 1990. He has over 30 years
of extensive experience in the field of Information
Technology. Mr. Cheung joined Microsoft as the Vice
President of Consumer and Device Sales Group in
the Greater China Region from 2011 to 2019. Prior
to joining Microsoft, Mr. Cheung had served at various positions at Hewlett-
Packard (“HP”), including the Vice President of the Personal Systems Group
in HP China, General Manager of Solution Partners Organization (SPO) China
and Director of Mobile Business from 1995 to 2011.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LI Wei, aged 66, appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in August
2007. Mr. Li was educated in the PRC, Germany
and Australia. He has over 25 years of experience
in establishing and operating businesses in Asia,
particularly in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Li has
previously served as the Managing Director of a
number of listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Li
is now an independent non-executive director of
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. and Qianhai Health Holdings Limited,
the shares of both companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. He also
serves as the Chairman of Remuneration Committee and members of Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)

Mr. LAM Hin Chi, aged 57, appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in June 2014. Mr. Lam graduated from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University with a Professional
Diploma in Management Accountancy and a
Bachelor of Arts (Honours) in Accountancy. He is
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants. Mr. Lam has over 30 years
of experience in finance, auditing and accounting. Mr. Lam currently is an
executive director of Qianhai Health Holdings Limited and an independent
non-executive director of China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy
Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. He also serves as the Chairman of Audit Committee and
members of Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company.

Prof. Hung Wai Man, JP, aged 52, appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company in May 2016. Prof. Hung is the Principal
Liaison Officer for Hong Kong, Shenzhen Qianhai
Authority, Executive Chairman of Chinese Big Data
Society, and Adjunct Professor of the Belt and Road
Research Institute of Hainan University.

Prof. Hung is a seasoned ICT professional and angel
investor. He has worked in the computer industry
for more than 30 years. A well-known figure in the industry, Prof. Hung has
extensive experience in management consulting, project management and

outsourcing services. Prof. Hung is a Chartered Information Technology
Professional and a fellow of the British Computer Society, the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors, the Hong Kong Computer Society and the Internet
Professional Association. He has been appointed as a member of the Global
Council by the World Summit Awards.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)
EERATNERE (&)

Prof. Hung is currently a Deputy to the 13th National People’s Congress,
Vice President of Guangdong’s Association For Promotion of Cooperation
between Guangdong, Hong Kong and Macao, Chairman of Hong Kong Road
Safety Association, Chairman Emeritus of the Y.Elites Association, President
Emeritus of Internet Professional Association, Vice Chairman of the Monte
Jade Science and Technology Association of Hong Kong, Secretary General
of Hong Kong-ASEAN Economic Cooperation Foundation and Council
Member of Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives Association
etc. In 2012 to 2014, he had served as an associate member of the Central
Policy Unit of the HKSAR Government. In 2008, Prof. Hung was selected
as one of the Ten Outstanding Young Persons of Hong Kong. He was a
Standing Committee Member of the 11th All China Youth Federation. In
2015, he was appointed as a Justice of the Peace by the Hong Kong SAR
Government. In 2016, he was given the Asia Social Innovation Leadership
Award by CMO Asia.

Prof. Hung graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a
Higher Diploma in Maths, Statistics and Computing. He then obtained a
BA(Hons) from the University of Bolton, MBA from the University of Hull
and MA in Public and Comparative History from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong. He also obtained a LLM and LLD from the Renmin University
of China and PhD in Business Administration from Bulacan State University,
the Philippines.

Prof. Hung currently is an independent non-executive director of LH Group
Limited, Sino Hotels (Holdings) Limited and Sprocomm Intelligence Limited,
the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Prof. Hung also serves as the members of Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)

Mr. WANG Xiaolong, aged 65, appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company in May 2016. Mr. Wang graduated from
Peking University with Ph.D. degree in economics.
He is currently the vice chairman of China Trustee
Association, council member of China Wealth
Management 50 Forum (CWM50) and vice chairman
of the academic committee of CWM50.

:

From 1985 to 1990, Mr. Wang joined the National Economic System
Reform Committee (NESRC) as director of the Research Office, later he
was promoted to be department director. From 1990 to 1994, he acted
as deputy director, executive deputy director of Beijing New-Tech Industry

Development Zone. From 1994 to 1998, he was appointed to many important
positions, such as director, deputy general manager of Hong Kong Jing-
Tai Industrial (Group) Company Limited, general manager and chairman of
board of Hong Kong Jing-Tai Finance Company Limited, board director
and president of Hong Kong Jing-Tai Securities Company Limited, and
the board chairman of Hong Kong Jing-Tai Industry Investment Company
Limited. Mr. Wang was also the executive director and vice president of
Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited. From 1998 to present, Mr. Wang acts
as president and vice chairman of Beijing International Trust and Investment
Corporation Limited which is now transformed to Beijing International Trust
Co. Ltd.

Mr. Wang has a long time dedication to economic research and financial
enterprise management, so he accumulates a rich and sound experience
in finance, trusts, securities and investment funds and enjoys a good
reputation in those areas. Mr. Wang has extensive experience in many
different industries and areas, such as variety of investments, merging
and acquisition, debt issuances, restructure, and IPO etc. Mr. Wang also
serves as the members of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company.

Company Secretary

Ms. YUE Cheuk Ying, aged 40, appointed as the
company secretary of the Company in September
2011 and is responsible for the secretarial matters of
the Group. She holds a Bachelor of Arts (Honours)
in Public and Social Administration and a Master of
Science in Professional Accounting and Corporate
Governance from the City University of Hong Kong.
She is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. She joined the
Group in 2009.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANGE REPORT

BRIE HERELSRS

This Environmental, Social and Governance (the “ESG”) Report is prepared in
accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules, which covers the overall performance, policies and practices
of the Group’s business and operations in terms of its environmental and
social responsibilities, for the year ended 31 December 2020. The ESG
Report mainly focuses on the aspects that have identified as material and
relevant to the Group’s business and its key stakeholders.

The Board acknowledges the overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG
strategies and reporting and for evaluating and determining the Group’s
ESG related risks. ESG performance is measured, reviewed and reported
to the management regularly for continuous improvement.

As a leading distributor of Information, Communication and Technology
(“ICT”) products in Asia, we strive to maximize the long-term benefits
of all our stakeholders by continuously communicating with them and
effectively balancing their respective expectations and needs in order to
achieve sustainable development of the Company. Our key stakeholders
include the shareholders, employees, clients, suppliers, environment and
community, etc.

A. Environmental Protection

The Group undertakes environmental protection as part of its corporate
responsibilities, and it is fully aware of the importance of sustainable
environmental development in promoting sustainability in its operations.
The Group is committed to implementing different environmental
protection measures to reduce the impacts on the environment.

Emissions

As our business is mainly trading in nature, the operations of our Group
does not have significant impacts on air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste. Air and gas emission and non-hazardous waste
generated by the Group is minimal. The most common emissions
from our daily business activities are mainly generated from the offices
and warehouses consumption of electricity and the Group does not
produce any hazardous waste in its operations. During the year under
review, the Group did not have any non-compliance issues related to
the environmental laws and regulations.

26 VSTECS Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2020

PIRE - e RkER(IEE  HEREAR]D
REDRELTHRAUME-+ERE 2R
2 HEREARESEIIGY  REHEZ
S _TFFT A=t BLTFELAEEER
LEEBRRERMEETFEAZEERE
BEREE - RE LR EARSEZH
HEHRN A ASEEBEREXERNERE
FEENHEBCER -

EFEeREEEAEERE HERERR
BEREEEARFEREEARAEERE
HekeafERRZEREMT - RR 1
GREATHEZRREMTUNGE  FLEY

MERERE - UHEBETE o
EBTHELENEN BARMB(IENA
NERNDERDOWEE  RMABRHIRBEBER
BREGETE SR BRTERZEAZE
BRER  UBRAREHERRSZZ SHF
¥ ONMEBBAAAZABEEE - BRFW
TERHERERE - EE  BF - #E
moIREREERSE o
A, RIEBERE
AEEBBERESASHCEELY —
By TFREAREEEERYREE
BEARBEMEEEM AEERNR
BHARABREE  UREHBEY Y

I

o

I

BRI

HRETESETZBZEZHEE - At
AEEEEHBEIRAEREER

MAKREHZHS  BEREZEEY
CEEVEBEEAYE - AEBELZE
RERECHBREEEENRL - KA
BMASEB T R RERDEE
BFEAMAERAREEREZEN AEH
TEALEFELTIMNEEEEZEY - 1
EIEFEAN  AEBWEBFETMER
RERREREACTERER -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Use of Resources

The Group highly encourages the efficient use of resources while
endeavours to reduce, reuse and recycle of resources to prevent
the unnecessary waste of resources and minimize the impacts on
the environment and natural resources. Due to the nature of our
business, the resources used by the Group are principally attributed
to electricity and paper consumed at our offices and warehouses.
Due to our business nature, our operation does not involve direct
consumption of water and packaging materials. Water consumption
by the Group was mainly bottled drinking water used at the Group’s
offices and warehouse only.

Electricity

As our Group’s business is mainly trading in nature, our electricity
consumption is normally used at our offices and warehouses and
we do not involve large electric facilities for operation. In view of
that, we consider electricity consumption attributed to less significant
to our Group. However, the Group continues its commitment in
reducing the energy consumption by reminding employees to switch
off their computers before leaving office, switch off the lighting in
the conference rooms and other functional rooms when they are not
in use and turn the electronic equipment into energy-saving mode
whenever possible. We also encourage our employees to keep the
office temperature at 25°C so as to ensure the efficient use of the
air-conditioning.

Paper and Printing Materials

Paper usage by the Group’s offices and warehouses is limited for
daily office use as well as some printing materials such as annual/
interim reports and circulars which are required to be distributed to
the shareholders. To save the environment, the Group continues
the efforts in reducing and recycling of paper usage, by reminding
our staff to have environmentally friendly printing and photocopying
habit, encouraging double-sided printing and scanning documents
to the Company'’s server system rather than photocopying whenever
possible, implementing password system for colour printing and
separate collection of waste paper and used envelopes for reuse
and recycling. For those printing materials, we will not over-printing
and will print on demand and encourage our readers make use of
the company’s website.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE - HERERRSE(E)

Environment and Natural Resources

Due to the nature of our Group’s operations, environmental impact
and use of natural resources is considered minimal. Nevertheless, our
Group is endeavour to protect the environment and natural resources
as a responsible corporate citizenship.

Social

The Group believes that building a harmonious and prosperous
community atmosphere can achieve a win-win situation and promote
long-term corporate benefit. Through the areas on our employment
and labour practices, operational practices and social involvement,
we establish a mutually beneficial relationship with our internal and
external stakeholders.

Employment

The Group believes that employees are the most important and
valuable assets contributing to the key of success and sustainable
growth of the Company as a whole. The Group strictly complies
with all the relevant labour laws and regulations under respective
jurisdictions. The Group treats all the employees equally that their
employment, remuneration, promotion or dismissal will not be affected
by their social identities such as race, nationality, gender, religion,
age and marital status.

The Group offers competitive remuneration, promotional opportunity,
compensation and benefit packages to attract and retain talents.
Salaries are reviewed and adjusted on a yearly basis based on
individual performance and the market situation. Employees are also
entitled to discretionary bonus, share options and Company’s shares
to recognize their contributions to the Group by reference to the
Group’s performance as well as individual performance. Other benefits
include medical insurance, paid and maternity leaves and retirement
scheme are also provided.

During the year under review, the Group did not have any non-
compliance with the relevant employment laws and regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Health and Safety

Workplace safety is extremely important to the Group. The Group
is committed to maintain a safe and healthy working environment
and offer occupational safety training to employees. The Group also
provides guidelines to staff in warehouses in order to raise awareness
on occupational safety and health. For example, warning notice is
placed around the warehouse for reminding the employees the careful
operation of electric reach trucks. During the year under review,
the Group did not have any work related fatality case or any non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.

Apart from workplace safety, a healthy lifestyle is promoted to the
employees. The Group organizes annual dinner, Christmas party and
Chinese New Year lunch every year to share the joy and happiness
amongst the employees and enhance their sense of belonging. Also,
in order to have a better work-life balance between the employees,
overtime working is not encouraged unless it is necessary. Employees
are encouraged to participate in other activities such as sports or other
interest courses to achieve a healthy work-life balance.

Development and Training

The Group considers development and training is one of the important
elements contributing the success of the Group. The Group provides
on-the-job and internal training to different levels of staff. Employees
are also highly encouraged to attend external training courses and
seminars that related to their job nature to enrich their knowledge
in discharging their duties. Our training covers products knowledge,
sales and marketing, operational skills, workflow management skills,
leadership and management skills.

Labour Standards

The Group strictly complies with the relevant rules and regulations
in relevant jurisdictions relating to child and forced labour. The
Group prohibits the employment of child and forced labour in any
of our operations. All the employees and job applicants enjoy equal
opportunities and fair treatment.

Every potential job applicant is required to complete the employment
application form, which will be checked and reviewed by the Human
Resource Department to ensure the information provided is accurate.
During the year under review, the Group did not have an issues relating
to child or forced labour or any non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE - HERERRSE(E)

Supply Chain Management

As aleading ICT products distributor, supply chain management forms
a very essential part in the Group. The Group implements an efficient
supply chain management system that strengthen the role of different
parties between suppliers, distributors and retailers and to ensure
high quality of services and products are delivered to our customers.
In order to increase the efficiency and effectiveness of our supply
chain management, different brand of suppliers are managed by our
designated project managers so that they can take full care of each
supplier to provide smooth delivery of products to different parties.

Most of our top suppliers are well-established and well-known brands
such as Huawei, HP, Seagate, Western Digital, Dell, Lenovo, and Apple
to name a few. Majority of our suppliers are governed by the laws
and regulations in the U.S. and other countries and they are expected
to comply with relevant laws and regulations in relation to safety
and environmental management standards so that their products
are up to standard. The Group emphasizes on the relationship
and communications with the suppliers to promote sustainable
development. The Group has strict selection process on its suppliers
taking into considerations such elements as supplier qualification,
past portfolio, product quality and recall policy, market conditions
and customers’ preference. The Group will communicate with the
suppliers and distributors regularly to maintain a good relationship
with them and review and monitor the performance of the suppliers
and provide feedback to them from time to time.

Product Responsibility

To provide high quality of products and services to our customers, the
Group carefully selects our suppliers with good reputation. The Group
will review the specifications of each product provided by the suppliers
before launching to our customers to ensure that each product
provided to customers are up to their standards and requirements.

As a comprehensive distributor, we not only endeavour to provide high
quality products to our customers, but also wide range of value-added
services to our suppliers and customers. We provide product return
and exchange procedures for our customers and we will report and
provide feedback on any complaints about the quality of the products
to our suppliers for their further review and improvement.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

In addition, the Group strives to protect personal data and privacy
of every customer. All the employees are obligated to retain in
highly confidential any information obtained in connection with their
employment, such as client information and supplier information.

The Group also pays high attention in protecting the interest of
intellectual property rights. When the Group engages a supplier to
sell its products, we will liaise with the supplier on the terms and
conditions on the sale of the products and a distributor agreement
will be signed by both parties to ensure that the Group has the right
and authority to sell the products on behalf of the suppliers.

Anti-corruption

The Group maintains a high standard of business integrity throughout
its operations and corrupt practices and bribery are strictly intolerable.
The Group complies strictly with the relevant laws and regulations
in relation to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. There
are anti-corruption and anti-bribery guidelines provided to all the
employees. During the year under review, the Group did not have any
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.

The Group has a Compliance Department to monitor the compliance
issue and to ensure that all employees are aware of the importance
of integrity and honesty as the Group’s core value. The Group has
stringent Code of Conduct that requires the employees and our
business partners to follow strictly. There are two aspects in the
Group’s Code of Conduct. One is related to employees. All newly
joined employees are required to sign the Employee’s Handbook
and an Integrity Declaration and attend anti-corruption training. All
employees are also required to attend anti-corruption training every
year to remind them on the importance of integrity. As for our business
partners, such as suppliers, terms and conditions related to anti-
corruption are included in all the purchasing and sale agreements to
ensure both parties are fully aware of their responsibilities.

The Group also has whistle-blowing policy which provides channels
for employees to report any malpractice, misconduct or illegal action.
All the information collected and received will be kept confidential and
the Group’s internal audit department will conduct internal investigation
and report to senior management.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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Community Investment

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group has been supporting
and engaging in community and charitable activities in order to achieve
a harmonious and sustainable development between enterprise and
the community.

The Group will continue supporting the culture of active participation
in community services, encouraging our staff to participate in various
voluntary activities, creating a strong social network and providing
assistance and supports for the people in need.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EXRE

aHE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to present
this Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 31 December 2020
and up to the date of this report.

The Company endeavours to attain high standards of corporate governance
practices to enhance and maintain shareholder value and investor confidence.

Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has complied
with the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) except for
some code provisions which are explained in the relevant paragraphs below.

The Company will continue to review and improve its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure that its corporate governance practices
comply with the regulatory requirements and appropriate for the needs of
its business.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
are summarised as follows:

Board of Directors

Composition

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and experience
necessary for its independent judgement and fulfilling its business needs.

The Board currently comprises 10 members, consisting of four Executive
Directors, two Non-executive Directors and four Independent Non-executive
Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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The Board of the Company comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William
Ms. Chow Ying Chi
(Resigned on 31 March 2020)
Mr. Li Yue
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Xia Bin (Appointed on 9 October 2020)
Mr. Cheung Wing Lee Isaiah (Appointed on 16 March 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Wei

Mr. Lam Hin Chi
Mr. Hung Wai Man
Mr. Wang Xiaolong

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules
from time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-executive Directors and at the same time representing at
least one-third of the Board with at least one Independent Non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each Independent
Non-executive Director of his independence pursuant to the requirements of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent in accordance with the independence guidelines
set out in the Listing Rules.

The Independent Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of technical,
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent judgement to
the Board. Through their active participation in Board meetings, taking the
lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of interests and serving
on Board committees, all Independent Non-executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TtEERRE(E)

Board Diversity

The Board has established a policy setting out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board (the “Board Diversity Policy”) with the aims of enhancing
Board effectiveness and corporate governance as well as achieving better
performance of the Company. In designing the board composition, board
diversity can be achieved through consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and education background,
professional skills, industry experience and knowledge and length of service.
In considering these perspectives on diversity, the Company will also take
into account factors based on its business model and specific needs from
time to time.

The Nomination Committee will be responsible for identifying suitably qualified
candidates to become members of the Board and, in carrying out this
responsibility, will give adequate consideration to the Board Diversity Policy.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee had taken the Board Diversity Policy into
account in relation to the appointment of directors of the Company.

The current Board consists of a diverse mix of Board members with different
appropriate skills, knowledges and experience to promote and achieve better
performance of the Company.

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the Board,
which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of the Company
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors should take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board reserves for its decisions on all major matters of the Company,
including: the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.
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All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well
as the advice and services of the company secretary of the Company,
with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

Each Director is able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making request to the
Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the abovementioned officers.

The Board has full support of the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management to discharge their responsibilities.

Corporate Governance Functions

In order to meet higher standard of the corporate governance requirement,
the Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance; reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior management
and the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirement; and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the
code and disclosure in this report.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERKRE (E)

Board Meetings

Directors’ Attendance and Number of Meetings

The attendance of Directors at Board meetings held during the year ended 31

December 2020 is set out below:

EES4-F-
EFHRERARERRE
EFLERBE-F-_FF+=A=1—8
EFERIEFEERZEARIMAT -

Attendance/
Number of Meetings

Directors BE HE,BITEERE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Li Jialin FEMELE 4/4
Mr. Mr. Ong Wei Hiam FEMTEE 4/4
Mr. Li Yue FIHEAE 4/4
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau BRI ST A 4/4
Ms. Chow Ying Chi BB+

(Resigned on 31 March 2020) (RZZE_TF=A=+—HEHL) 11
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Xia Bin BERE

(Appointed on 9 October 2020) (R=ZE=ZEF+ANLAEZT) 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Li Wei Y el 4/4
Mr. Lam Hin Chi ERBts 4/4
Mr. Hung Wai Man HRRELE 4/4
Mr. Wang Xiaolong FRERELEA 4/4

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are normally

made available to Directors in advance. Notices of Board meetings are
served to all Directors in accordance with the Code before the meetings.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and

reliable information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each Board

meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors appraised of the latest

developments and financial position of the Company and to enable them to
make informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.
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The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of
the Company normally attend all regular Board meetings and when necessary,
other committee meetings to advise on business developments, financial
and accounting matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance and
other major aspects of the Company.

Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary. Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for
comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version
is open for Directors’ inspection.

According to the current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a Director,
will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association also contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the
quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such Directors or
any of their associates have a material interest.

General Meetings

Under the code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors and
non-executives directors should attend general meetings and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. Mr. Li Jialin, Mr. Ong
Wei Hiam, Mr. Hung Wai Man and Mr. Wang Xiaolong, were unable to attend
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 26 May 2020 due to
other important engagements. All other directors had attend the 2020 annual
general meeting to answer questions and collect views of shareholders.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer (“CEO”) should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and CEO should be clearly established and set out in writing.

The current Chairman and CEO of the Company is Mr. Li Jialin. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and CEO in the same
person will not impair the balance of power and authority between the
Directors and the management of the Company and considers that this
structure will enable the Group to make and implement decisions promptly
and effectively. The Directors will meet regularly to consider major matters
affecting the operations of the Company.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each Director of the Company has either entered a service contract with the
Company or has an appointment letter. The Directors are not appointed for
any specific length or proposed length of services and their term of service
shall continue unless and until terminated by either party by a specific
months of notice in writing. Under the service agreements, the initial annual
emoluments of each Executive Director is fixed and the remuneration payable
to each of them will be reviewed by the Board each year.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of Association. Pursuant
to the Company’s Articles of Association, all Directors will be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new Directors
appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting
after appointment.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, Board diversity, developing and formulating the relevant
procedures for nomination and appointment of Directors, monitoring the
appointment of Directors and assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size and composition of
the Board regularly to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company.
Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination Committee will carry
out the selection process by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the
proposed candidates, the Company’s needs, the Board Diversity Policy
and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.

Pursuant to Article 86 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the Directors
shall have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person
as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to
the existing Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board shall hold office
only until the next following general meeting of the Company and shall then
be eligible for re-election. Pursuant to Article 87 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, at each annual general meeting, one third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one third), shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.
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The Board has recommended the re-appointment of the Directors standing
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
The Company’s circular contains detailed information of the Directors
standing for re-election.

Continuing Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction on
the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company continuously updates Directors on the legal and
regulatory developments, and the business and market changes to facilitate
the discharge of their responsibilities. All Directors have participated in
continuous professional development by attending seminars or reading
relevant materials and provided a record of training they received during
the year to the Company.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”). Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors
and the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Company also has established a written guideline on terms no less
exacting terms than the Model Code for governing the securities transactions
by employees who are likely to be possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company or its securities. No incident of non-compliance
by the employees was noted by the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of reference.

The majority members of each Board committee are Independent Non-
executive Directors and the list of the Chairman and members of each
Board committee is set out under the section of “Corporate Information”
of this annual report.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises four Independent Non-executive Directors
(including one Independent Non-executive Director who possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise). None of the members of the Audit Committee are
a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(a) To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant or
external auditors before submission to the Board.

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditors by reference
to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re- appointment and removal of external auditors.

(c) To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management
system and associated procedures.

(d) To review arrangements which employees of the Company can use
to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters.
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The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 December
2020 to review the financial results and reports, financial reporting and
compliance procedures, the risk management and internal control systems
and the re-appointment of the external auditors.
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The attendance of individual members at Audit Committee meetings is set ARIKEHFERZE e 2 BRI M
out below: T

Attendance/

Number of Meetings

HEBITERRE

Mr. Lam Hin Chi (Chairman) EREBEE(EE) 2/2

Mr. Li Wei RN E 2/2

Mr. Hung Wai Man HAEREA 2/2

Mr. Wang Xiaolong FEERESL A 2/2

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external
auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2020 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for
all directors’ and senior management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for development remuneration
policy; reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management; making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration of Non-executive Directors; reviewing and
approving termination compensation, dismissal or removal compensation
arrangements, and ensuring that no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.
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The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

One Remuneration Committee meeting has been held during the year ended
31 December 2020 to review (a) whether the remuneration package of
the directors and senior management are reasonable; (b) the basis of the
remuneration package, i.e. qualification, working experience and market
level of comparable position etc. to see whether any improvements needed
to be made.

The Remuneration Committee comprises four Independent Non-executive
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Directors. The attendance of individual members at Remuneration Committee  BIKE X FHFHEE €22 2B RH W T :
meeting is set out below:

Attendance/

Number of Meetings

HEBTEERH

Mr. Li Wei (Chairman) FIESHE(FE) 1/1
Mr. Lam Hin Chi ERpLE 1/1
Mr. Hung Wai Man HERREAE 1/1
Mr. Wang Xiaolong FEEREE A 11

Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified
to become board members, assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executives Directors, and making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

One Nomination Committee meeting has been held during the year ended 31
December 2020 for reviewing the Board composition, developing and
formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of
Directors, monitoring the appointment of Directors and assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.
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The Nomination Committee comprises one Executive Director as chairman,
and four Independent Non-executive Directors as members. The attendance
of individual members at Nomination Committee meeting is set out below:

RAZBEH LR TEFHEETRFERTA
BIUFNTEFLHEKE - EARHKEHFR
AEEBEERIBERAEINMT ¢

Attendance/

Number of Meetings

HEBITEERRK

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman) TEMEE(EE) 1/1
Mr. Li Wei FERE 1/1
Mr. Lam Hin Chi ERBiaE 11
Mr. Hung Wai Man HAEREA 1/1
Mr. Wang Xiaolong FRERESR A 1/1

Responsibilities in Respect of the Financial
Statements and Auditors’ Remuneration

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, price-sensitive announcements
and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the ’Independent
Auditor’s Report’.

The Company’s external auditors are KPMG. The Group was charged
approximately HK$7,101,000 and HK$1,314,000 by KPMG for auditing and
non-auditing services respectively for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.to safeguard shareholders’
investments and have a better control on the business and operation of
the Company. The Board is also responsible for reviewing the effectiveness
of its risk management and internal control systems on an annual basis.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure with defined
lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation of responsibility and
authority to the senior management. As a leading and comprehensive ICT
products distributor, our Group has many well-known suppliers and vendors
as well as extensive downstream channel partners. In order to cooperate
with different parties, our senior management team will be delegated to
take different responsibility such as product management, supply chain
management, operational management and financial management, etc., to
ensure that the Group has a smooth business operation to reduce risk and
uncertainties that may be caused.

The management of the Company is responsible for designing, implementing
and monitoring the Group’s risk management and internal control framework,
covering all material controls including financial, operational and compliance
controls. The risk management and internal control framework also provides
for identification and management of risk.

The management also conducts periodic meetings and independent reviews
on the operations of individual divisions to identify any irregularities and
risks, develops action plans and recommendations to address the identified
risks, and reports to the Audit Committee on any key findings. The Audit
Committee, in turn, reports to the Board on any material issues and makes
recommendations to the Board.

The Board acknowledged that it is their responsibilities to maintain an
effective risk management and internal control systems. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Company has established a policy in relation to the handling and
dissemination of inside information. The Board as a whole is responsible
for identifying and considering the disclosure requirements and guidelines
regarding inside information.
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Besides, the Company regularly reminds the directors and employees on the
compliance with all the requirements regarding inside information. Also, the
directors and employees are kept informed on the latest regulatory updates
to ensure they are complied with the regulatory requirements.

The Board has conducted an annual review of the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staffing of the financial reporting function
as well as the oversight role of the Audit Committee and consider that the
existing risk management and internal control systems of the Group is
effective and adequate.

There is an internal audit function in some of the Group’s subsidiaries to
carry out independent assessment of risks and testing of controls of the
business and operation of the Company in order to provide a reasonable
assurance that adequate controls and governance are in operation. The
Board considers that as the structure of some of our business is rather
simple and direct within the Group, the Board will continue to review on
annual basis the need of the internal audit function to be extended to the
whole Group.

Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Associations, any one
or more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meeting of the Company, shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Put Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries from shareholders are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner. Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing to the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong at Unit 3312, 33/F, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the company
secretary.

The company secretary shall forward the shareholders’ enquiries and
concerns to the Board and/or relevant board committees of the Company,
where appropriate, to answer the shareholders’ questions.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the
Articles of Association of the Company. Shareholders who wish to propose
a resolution may request the Company to convene a general meeting by
following the procedures set out in “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene
an Extraordinary General Meeting”.

Regarding the procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a director, please refer to the procedures available on the Company’s
website.

Shareholders’ Communications and Investor
Relations

The Company has established a range of communication channels between
itself and its shareholders, investors and other stakeholders.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The Chairman of
the Board as well as chairmen of other Board committees, and the external
auditors, are available to answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings.
To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including the
election of individual Directors. All resolutions proposed at the shareholders’
meetings (other than on procedural and administrative matters) will be
voted by poll. The poll results shall be posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company respectively on the same day as the poll.
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To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains a website
at www.vstecs.com, where extensive information and updates on the
Company’s business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are posted.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there had been no significant
change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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Directors’ Report I

EFERE

The directors (the “Directors”) of VSTECS Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
are pleased to present their annual report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the development of information technology (“IT”)
product channel and provision of technical solution integration services.
The three major business segments are enterprise systems which provides
enterprise system tools for IT infrastructure and IT infrastructure design and
implementation, training, maintenance and support services; Consumer
electronics which provides finished IT products; and cloud computing which
provides cloud computing solutions and services.

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 7 to the
financial statements.

Business Review

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on
the Group’s future development are provided in the Chairman’s Statement
and the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to 13 and
pages 15 to 19 respectively of this annual report. A description of possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing, discussion on the
Group’s environmental policies, relationships with its key stakeholders and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Group are contained in the Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 15 to 19 of this annual report. The Environmental, Social
and Governance Report are set out on pages 26 to 32 of this annual report.
The Corporate Governance Report are set out on pages 33 to 48 of the
annual report. In addition, an analysis of the Group’s performance during the
year using financial key performance indicators is presented in the Financial
Summary on page 184 of this annual report.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The largest customer for the year ended 31 December 2020 represented
approximately 9% (2019: approximately 9%) of the Group’s total turnover, and
the combined total of the five largest customers accounted for approximately
18% (2019: approximately 22%) of the Group’s total turnover for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

In addition, the largest supplier for the year ended 31 December 2020
represented approximately 21% (2019: approximately 18.8%) of the
Group’s total purchases, and the combined total of the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 63% (2019: approximately 61%) of the Group’s
total purchases for the year ended 31 December 2020.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 73.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2020 of HK22 cents per ordinary share (2019: HK16.7 cents).

Dividend Policy

The dividend policy adopted by the Company is based on a number of
factors and conditions. Pursuant to the applicable laws of the Cayman
Islands and the Articles of Association of the Company, any declaration of
final dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company
and the distribution of dividend should be made of out of profit. When
recommending an interim or a final dividend, the Board will take into account,
inter alia, the financial results, liquidity position, general business conditions
and strategies, capital requirement for future development as well as the
distributable reserves of the Company (comprise of the Company’s reserves
excluding capital redemption reserve as set out in note 15 to the financial
statements) and the retained earnings of other members of the Group and
any other factors the Board may deem relevant from time to time.
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Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 75 to 76 and note 15 to the financial statements
respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

Borrowings and lease liabilities

Particulars of the Group’s borrowings are set out in notes 18 and 19 to
the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in note
13 to the financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles

of Association and there is no restriction against such rights under the
Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 184.

(R

AEBRRNRAFBRBERBEE_T_TF+ =
A=+ —RUEFEZEHHREHANETSET6
BZHRAaRaE R IV EHRRMES6 -

ME > BERRE

AEBYE BEERRBEHZHBHANY

R M LS ©

BEREEER

AEBEBEZFE
19 -

IR A<

ARBRAESE 2 FBHN P BERERME I8 -

BN BEHREMFI8R

BrBERE

AR R) 2 A E R AN R B BB ST R
ZEX  MASESRRDE(RET)TESR
RARZ SR 2 PRI -

EEMBRE

REBRBERAEVRFEZEEREENR
BEBMEHNE184E -

EHaARRERAT —T-_=a&® bl




Directors’ Report (continued)
EEEg®RE(H)

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company repurchased
1,770,000 ordinary shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange. The
repurchased shares were cancelled. Details of the repurchase of shares by
the Company are as follows:

No. of shares

Highest price per

BE  -HEEOES
NEE-F-TE+-A=+—BLFE

ARANBREERZFTEER,770,000 A A 7 & B
f% o BBE 2 BRMHEMHEHE ﬁ@$ﬂﬂﬁ@
a2 FBWT

Lowest price per Aggregate price

Month of repurchase repurchased share (HK$) share (HK$) paid (HKS$)
BE 2z AR BERONEE SRESEGERT) SRERKEGERT) CHLEEREGERT)
March 2020 1,488,000 3.30 3.30 4,910,400
—EZTFE=R
April 2020 282,000 3.52 3.52 992,640
—EZTFIMA

1,770,000 5,903,040
The Board believes that such repurchase of shares will lead to anenhancement EZ®MH{E - FEAKGOBEH SRS A QA

of the net asset value of the Company and/or its earnings per share.

Apart from the above, the Company also acquired, through some trust
setup specifically for purpose of employment compensation, a total of
11,372,000 ordinary shares of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2020 from the open market at a total cash consideration of
approximately HK$44,212,000. These shares would be used primarily for
providing employment/executive compensation of the Group. The costs
of acquisition of shares are recognised in the “Deferred reserve”
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

in the

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares.
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Directors

The Directors of the Company who held office during the year ended 31
December 2020 and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William
Mr. Li Yue
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau
Ms. Chow Ying Chi
(Resigned on 31 March 2020)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Xia Bin
(Appointed on 9 October 2020)
Mr. Cheung Wing Lee Isaiah
(Appointed on 16 March 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Wei

Mr. Lam Hin Chi
Mr. Hung Wai Man
Mr. Wang Xiaolong

Pursuant to Article 86 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the Directors
shall have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person
as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to
the existing Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board shall hold office
only until the next following general meeting of the Company and shall then
be eligible for re-election. Pursuant to Article 87 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, at each annual general meeting, one third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one third), shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Details of the Directors proposed to be re-elected are contained in the
Company’s circular.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of its Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to the Listing Rules and the Company considers the Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Executive Directors

Each Director of the Company has either entered a service contract with the
Company or has an appointment letter. The Directors are not appointed for
any specific length or proposed length of services and their term of service
shall continue unless and until terminated by either party by a specific
months of notice in writing.

Under the service agreements, the annual emoluments of each executive
Director is fixed and the remuneration payable to each of them will be
reviewed by the Board each year.

Non-executive Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed by the Board
but subject to re-election or retirement by rotation at each annual general
meeting as appropriate.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has an unexpired service contract
which is not terminable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
obligations.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of the companies comprising the Group was a party
and in which a Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the year ended 31 December 2020 or at any time during the
year under review.

Biographical Details of Directors and Company
Secretary

Brief biographical details of Directors and company secretary are set out
on pages 20 to 25.

B4  VSTECS Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2020

EECRBEN
HITES
ARRABEFCRARBLRBA O E
BEER  EFVHREAFEEDRRER
THMEET BRIEREEEFA-—FTELEEAR
BrEHBMALL  BAREZEHS &
& o

RERGHE  SRTEEZFEMERTE
BHOMEFSRESFRIENTIATE
EZHM -

FHUTES
BUFATEFHEFESRE - HEARE

RESERRBFASLEXBENGHE
T o

%
f B

BREXFREESN  EFUEEMARFR
HEEMMBARTATR - FRARMNEBE(—R
EEBEBINMEIEZ RKERRBEL -

EERGH2ER
RBE-FT-TF+-AZ+-ALFERX
o TR AR A A
EETAMATY  RAREEEEMHE
EXEFHEAMERAEARG 2 ERA
W -

ESERLTEIWERE

EENPRWEBEMEEHNEFE20E258 -



Directors’ Report (continued)
EFEg®RE(H)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the laws of Hong Kong)) (the “SFO”) which would have to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and/or short positions of which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and/or
required to be entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or which would have to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company

—_= A=

BEETBABRA QA SKEE AR EE
EEABLHRBEKROI(EBEMESTIE)
[FHREEEG ) EXVE) Z2RH - HEB
RHOSEEZFREERBEZSRAEENE
XVEET7 k87 HAEME AN T &R
mEAB(RRESREZESFRBERIIZSE
X WERREREAZERZR KR -
k/SBLARDNGBREZSFRPEIEMNE
32 IFE 2 ERM R KA - HRE
EHRABHNEARR R R &S A
BT

RARBRGDRAEBR G 2 EZ

Approximate

Number of percentage of
ordinary shares or issued share
Long/Short underlying shares capital of the
Name of Director Position Capacity held Company
BEEBERIEBER GERQIRAEBITRAE
EEnA L8 =37 HEE ZHREDH
Mr. Li Jialin Long Beneficial owner 79,633,200 5.47%
FEMEE R BEnEAA
Long Interest of a controlled 311,228,000 21.40%
e R E (Note 1)
(BFaET)
Long Family interest 204,309,600 14.05%
e eI i (Note 2)
(M5E2)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William Long Beneficial owner 1,993,600 0.14%
FRETTEE A BEREAA

EHEXRRRERAT —T-_T&4{ bbH




Directors’ Report (continued)
EEEg®RE(H)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures (continueq)

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company
(continued)

Notes:

1. 311,228,000 shares of the Company are held by L & L Limited, the entire
issued share capital of which is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin and his spouse,
Ms. Liu Li.

2. 204,309,600 shares of the Company are held by Ms. Liu Li, the spouse of
Mr. Li Jialin.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors
nor the chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and/or short
positions of which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EFEg®RE(H)

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2020, so far is known to the Directors, the following
persons had an interest and/or a short position in the shares and/or

underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and/or required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and/or
were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value

of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meeting of any other members of the Group:

RZTE_ZTF+_A=+—H8 BEFH
HoUATALTRARA 2GR, 28 B R
R EEREZESF BB G EXVIEE2 M3
DR ZGEXARAR DR R TRE 2w
R/SRKE - RS HBRBARRAIREES
MEEGPIEBeKRFEZERM 2 #E R
gKkE - RSP EATEEABERTRA
SEEMEMKE AR ZRRAG LRAZ
B2 EMBERNRATEZIEEES@E
5%k A £z S

Number of ordinary

Approximate

Long/Short shares or underlying percentage of
Name of shareholder Position Capacity shares held shareholding
BFEEERY B4R
BEEpE B/ %R =47) HBEROBE Vi1
Mr. Li Jialin Long Beneficial owner 79,633,200 5.47%
FEMEE A EmlsA

Long Interest of a controlled corporation 311,228,000 21.40%

HE X EEER (Note 1)

(B5E1)
Long Family interest 204,309,600 14.05%

HE Rk (Note 2)

(F7E2)
Ms. Liu Li Long Beneficial owner 204,309,600 14.05%

BF L+ 50 EnEEA

Long Interest of a controlled corporation 311,228,000 21.40%

HE X EERER (Note 1)

(PB3E1)
Long Family interest 79,633,200 5.47%

HE Rk (Note 3)

(F95E3)
BUERBRARLE - -TFEHR DY



Directors’ Report (continued)
EEEg®RE(H)

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ FE R
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying 2 ~ 48
Shares and Debentures (continued) =

Number of ordinary Approximate
Long/Short shares or underlying percentage of
Name of shareholder Position Capacity shares held shareholding
BREEERY AR
BEEpE B/ %R 519 HBEROBE BOL
L & L Limited Long Beneficial owner 311,228,000 21.40%
A EnERA (Note 4)
(Fg5E4)
Eternal Asia (HK) Limited Long Beneficial owner 262,211,998 17.34%
Bta (BE)BRAA e EafiAA (Note 5)
(B95E5)
AR AHRERRNERL  Long Interest of a controlled corporation 252,211,998 17.34%
Al HE X EEER (Note 6)
B
Amish@mEERkERAT  Long Interest of a controlled corporation 252,211,998 17.34%
o) R EE RS (Note 7)
(P&E7)
Mr. Zhou Guohui Long Interest of a controlled corporation 262,211,998 17.34%
EIBIE 5 = ) RErERER (Note 7)
(B5E7)
B E I M RTT Long Security interest in shares 252,211,998 17.34%
A [ A7 R 2 (Note 8)
(Pr3E8)
BZRINEEER Long Interest of a controlled corporation 252,211,998 17.34%
A R EE RS (Note 8)
(fgzE8)
Fidelity Puritan Trust Long Beneficial owner 145,576,300 10.01%
50 EnEEA
FMR LLC Long Interest of a controlled corporation 166,114,038 11.42%
o) REmrEER

B8 VSTECS Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2020



Directors’ Report (continued)
EFEg®RE(H)

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures (continueq)

Notes:

1.

311,228,000 shares of the Company are held by L & L Limited, the entire
issued share capital of which is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin and his spouse,
Ms. Liu Li.

204,309,600 shares of the Company are held by Ms. Liu Li, the spouse of
Mr. Li Jialin.

79,633,200 shares of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the spouse of
Ms. Liu Li.

The entire issued share capital of L & L Limited is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin
and his spouse, Ms. Liu Li.

The entire issued share capital of Eternal Asia (HK) Limited are held by &3l
MR EERG BRAA.

36.72% of the shares of &kIITT 16 B EHE (D AR QA are held by J&I|
MBI EERER AR,
100% of the shares of FIITT 18 TR BT EIE AR A R A 7] are held by Mr. Zhou

Guohui.

89.26% of the shares of B H O #R1T are held by IRINEEIRF.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, so far is known to the

Directors, no person had an interest and/or a short position in the shares

and/or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to

the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and/or required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and/or
was directly or indirectly interested in 5% of more of the nominal value of
any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at

general meeting of any other members of the Group, or any options in
respect of such capital.

e

RNAF2311,228,000 M EL & L
Limited#74 - ML & L Limited2 % 2 %17
BABRFTEMRCERERBEN LTSS
ﬁ °

2. RN A 2204,309,6008%f% 19 B Z =ML 4
ZEERF LTS -

3. ANT 279,633,200 B 10 B = EME &
ZEERF LTS -

4, L & L Limitedz 252 81T AR FEMN
EEREBBIMNLLIHYERE -

5. e (BEB)BRAAIZEHE FHITRAH
RYITiE B EEEROERQAFE ©

6. FY TR T BHREERMBER QA Z
36.72% B EFRYITIEEREERRAR
NEEAE °

7. RYITIERBEELERBRRQAZ100%K
HHEABRBELERES -

8. PR H OR1T289.26% A1) M B R IMNE
EEREA -
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEZEHRE(E)

Share Options

Share option scheme of the Company

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 17 April 2002 (the
“Old Scheme”) has been expired. The Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”) on 23 June 2015 for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants for their contribution to the
Group. During the year under review, no share options have been granted
under the New Scheme. Further details of the New Scheme are set out in
note 14 to the financial statements.

During the year under review, no share options have been lapsed or cancelled
under the Old Scheme. Details of the share options movement under the
Old Scheme are as follows:

BRE

RNpE 2z BRERE

RZZBZ_FOATEERAZARAEERKR
BAB(TEFEDEER ~A2ANR-ZE
—HERAZTZBRMAN BN BRETS
([#58)) BEERAERZRERAEE
EHZERREHRABMEZR - REEFEL
ERBEH R BEMBRE - 582
—HHBEEN M RERME14 -

A BB E BB BB R AR IR B AT 81K
A o BRI TREBREZS Z2FBNOT ¢

As at As at  Exercise price

Name or category of 1 January Exercised Lapsed 31 December per share
participant Date of offer 2020 during the year during the year 2020 (HKS) Exercise period

R=ZB=2% R=Z=%% BRITERE
SRELEHER BTAH -A-H RERTE REREXH +=B=+-8 (B7) e
Directors
s
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, Wiliam  23/03/2011 1,440,000 (1,440,000) - - 2,028  23/03/2013-22/03/2021
TR
Mr. Li Wei 23/03/2011 240,000 (240,000) - - 2.028  23/03/2013-22/03/2021
FREE
Sub-total /]\&t: 1,680,000 (1,680,000) - -
Employees 17/02/2011 1,920,000 (1,200,000 - 720,000 2227 17/02/2013-16/02/2021
&8
Total &t 3,600,000 (2,880,000 - 720,000
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EFEg®RE(H)

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of the companies comprising the Group, a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debenture of, the Company or any other body
corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses or their children under
the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company,
or had exercised any such right during the year under review.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

The Directors consider that they have no interests in any competing business.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that the Directors or
other officers of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets of the Company against all losses and liabilities which
they may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty. The Company has arranged
for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in
respect of legal actions against the Directors and officers arising out of
corporate activities.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Connected Transactions

Connected transactions (also related party transactions) have been disclosed
in note 31 of the financial statements.

The above transactions constituted connected transactions under the Listing
Rules. The Directors are of the opinion that the above transactions were
entered into on normal commercial terms and on an arm’s length basis
and the terms of the above transactions are fair and reasonable so far as
the shareholders of the Company are concerned and in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders of the Company taken as a whole.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEEg®RE(H)

Connected Transactions (continueq)

The above connected transactions constituted exempted connected
transactions under the Listing Rules as each of the percentage ratios is
less than 0.1% as defined under the Listing Rules when the agreements
were entered into.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Emoluments

A summary of the Directors and senior management’s emoluments is set
out in note 27 to the financial statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

Audit Committee

The Company’s audited results for the year ended 31 December 2020
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee who was of the opinion that
the preparation of such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate disclosures have been made.

Auditors

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 have been audited by KPMG who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Li Jialin

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 March 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BIAZBENERS

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of VSTECS
Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of VSTECS Holdings
Limited, (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages
71 to 183, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2020, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

REAEARAERERAFAICLKRRED
BYZBEORE
(RASHETMALAFRAAF)

=z
=

AiZEE (A TEBIEMD B EAINERSE
T1IE183AMBHERNERAR DA (AT
Bl BERADREMBARATHREI &
SEDNGEMBRER  UEBRRE2ER
—ECEEST A=+ BB BRR
REBEZRLFENGABERR KA H
EHERAR  HARDEHRRNEAR
EREBKR  UREAGVBRRME 2%
TESHRREE -

BMRE  ZEREVBHRECBRESSE
e Rg (BBt AT ) BHACEEY
BHmEERD)([BAVBRELENDEEMF
BT BEEBER-ZTZTF+=-A=
T—AMGEMBRAREEZRLEFER
BREVBRBARGEREAE LD ERE
BCRBMERDR BB ERE BEE -

ERNER

BRMERBEBEESFAMASRANERER
HADETES - LMAEZSENTAENR
FEEAREZBE R E FA P HHRRA
EREEISoPIEE—FTBE - REFE
SR AGEMNCEXEFANEE TR (A
THEHEITADUARRAEHERRMEEE
MHBRRNOBAHEBOERZ R BHMABT
n BEEHE YEETELBREERNURST
A EMmBEZEREMT - HFIBEE - B
PESHEFRERTRENEEHRARMY
BRIBMHER -

EHaARRERAT —T-Ts4% 63




Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BIYZEMERE (E)

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

FEEFTEE

MR FHEIRERMOF R HE

 RARBAHEEMBRERNEBAZAZTENSTE - GEERARERMEBTER

REMBHRAREABARBETREN - RATSHELERRERAEBNER -

Valuation of inventories

Refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies set out in note 2.11.

The Key Audit Matter

The Group’s inventories, which consist of various information
technology products and enterprise equipment, amounted to
HK$5,501,828,000 (approximately 20% of the Group’s current
assets) as at 31 December 2020.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Management estimates the net realisable values of inventories
based on expected demand, future selling prices and the future
expenses necessary to make the sales. Future demand and
selling prices of technology products are highly susceptible
to factors such as industry standards, technological changes
and customer preferences, which are constantly changing and
could change very rapidly.

Determining provision for inventories requires the exercise of
significant management judgement as actual selling prices of
individual inventory items may fall below their costs or carrying
values.

We identified the net realisable value of inventories as a key
audit matter because any write-down or provision may have
a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements
and because the estimation of the net realisable values involves
the exercise of significant management judgement which can
be inherently uncertain.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the net realisable value of
inventories included the following:

° obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of the Group’s
key internal controls over the inventory write-down and
provision assessment process, including the Group’s
monitoring controls over slow-moving inventories;

° assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
inventory ageing reports were classified within the
appropriate ageing bracket by comparing individual
items with relevant purchase records, including purchase
invoices and goods receipt notes;

° evaluating, on a sample basis, whether inventories were
sold at prices above their carrying values subsequent to
the reporting date;

° evaluating, on a sample basis, whether inventories may
be obsolete or slow-moving by comparing the quantity
of inventories at the reporting date with the quantity sold
subsequent to the reporting date and with reference to
inventory turnover days during the current and previous
financial years; and

° assessing the historical accuracy of management’s
estimation of write-down and provision for inventories
at the end of the previous financial year by examining
movements in the balance of provision for inventories
during the current year.



Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZEMEE(E)

FEMGE
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Valuation of trade receivables
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Refer to note 10 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies set out in note 2.8.

The Key Audit Matter

The Group’s trade receivables amounted to HK$13,207,407,000
(approximately 49% of the Group’s current assets) as
at 31 December 2020, after making a loss allowance of
HK$672,273,000.

The Group’s customers operate in a number of geographical
locations. According to the past experience of the Group,
the loss patterns for customers in different geographical
locations are significantly different. Therefore, when calculating
the loss allowance, the trade receivables are segmented by
geographical locations.

Management measured loss allowance at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses which is based on ageing of
the trade receivables and loss rates, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the customers, current economic conditions
and forward-looking information, all of which involve significant
management judgement.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of trade receivables
included the following:

° obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of the
Group’s key internal controls relating to credit control,
debt collection, segmentation of trade receivables,
estimate of expected credit losses and making related
allowances;

o evaluating the Group’s policy for estimating the credit
loss allowance with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;

° obtaining an understanding on the key assumptions of the
expected credit loss model adopted by the management,
the historical default data, and the assumptions involved
in management’s estimated loss rates;

o assessing the appropriateness of management’s
estimates for loss allowance by examining the information
used by management to derives such estimates,
including testing the accuracy of the historical default
data and evaluating whether the historical loss rates
are appropriately adjusted based on current economic

conditions and forward-looking information;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BIYZEMERE (E)

Valuation of trade receivables (continued)
The Key Audit Matter (continued)

We identified the valuation of trade receivables as a key audit
matter because the recognition of expected credit losses of
trade receivables involves significant management judgement
which can be inherently uncertain and could be subjective
thereby increasing the risk of error or management bias.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit continued)

° assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
trade receivables ageing reports were classified within
the appropriate ageing bracket by comparing individual
items with the underlying documentation, including sales
invoices; and

° re-performing the calculation of the loss allowance as
at 31 December 2020 based on the Group’s credit loss
allowance policies.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZEMEE(E)

Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BIYZEMERE (E)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZEMEE(E)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (ontinueq)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BIYZEMERE (E)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (ontinueq)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Cheng Pui Ngar.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

25 March 2021

70 VSTECS Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2020

REMMBET A BERE
AENET

NEBEZZEBEBRNETESR  HMAET
BEEFUABGEEUERENETZAE
T AMBRBEBETSE BMHEZH
RishE Rl ELEIE  RIFEERERATR
FARBRELER  REBBERNBR
T MRAEBEHERMBEREBEEE
ERNEERRBEMEEN ARG @ &
PMRETEEREPEBZEHE °

HARBYRBMBENEFREAERAR
oA -

EERETMEHAT
HEDE A
BRI

T E1095%
KNFRESHE

—E-—4%=ZA=-+AH



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ReEMBIKRAER

As at 31 December 2020 A-E-ZF+=-HA=+—H

2020 2019
—EIEF —E-NF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’'000
(= FH&xT FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - HWERERE 5 682,142 649,871
Intangible assets BVEE 6 359,386 324,099
Interests in associates REFE R RIS 8 953,407 940,404
Interest in a joint venture REEDLENER 9 29,250 30,396
Deferred expenses EEFA S 10 346 886
Deferred tax assets RIEFIAE B 17 174,527 123,078
2,199,058 2,068,734
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables E 5 K H b R GRIE 10 18,165,493 14,558,880
Inventories T8 11 5,501,828 5,985,753
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEED 12 3,559,192 2,327,702
27,226,513 22,867,335
Total assets BEE 29,425,571 24,936,069
EQUITY R
Share capital f& s 13 145,445 145,334
Reserves i 6,680,841 5,509,138
Total equity BEER 6,826,286 5,654,472
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
mE BRI E(E)

As at 31 December 2020 R -Z -ZTHF+-A=+—H

2020 2019
—EBCEF —E-hF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
BsE FHExT T
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities kRBEME
Contract liabilities aBHBE 16 481 1,193
Lease liabilities HEARE 18 165,940 168,072
Borrowings BE 19 - 1,487,827
Deferred tax liabilities RIER IR A G 17 40,245 19,190
206,666 1,676,282
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 MEMERFRIE 16 14,699,750 10,346,223
Contract liabilities aHAaE 16 711,462 544,700
Lease liabilities HEaE 18 95,799 90,131
Borrowings =g 19 6,750,812 6,529,285
Taxation payable FEfHLIR 134,796 94,976
22,392,619 17,605,315
Total liabilities HwWEE 22,599,285 19,281,597
Total equity and liabilities EEkaEEHE 29,425,571 24,936,069
Net current assets REBEEZFE 4,833,894 5,262,020
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 7,032,952 7,330,754

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 March EEE@R_-Z-—F=A - +HARERRET

2021. %%
Li Jialin Ong Wei Hiam, William

ZEM EX =Yy

Director Director

2 EF

The notes on pages 78 to 183 form part of these financial statements. FT78E18BE LM RAMBImMK 2 —HH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS I

FRERaR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z-_TH+_A=+—HILtFE

2020 2019

—E-EHF —

Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000

BaE FERT FET

Revenue Weas 20 69,961,881 66,209,921

Cost of sales eI (66,834,568) (63,242,067)

Gross profit EF 3,127,313 2,967,854

Other gains, net H A F 58 21 36,025 35,809

Selling and distribution expenses SHE RO MY (1,143,202) (1,125,057)

Administrative expenses THRFAX (599,782) (618,394)

Operating profit eyl 22 1,420,354 1,260,212

Finance costs B E A 23 (193,908) (295,616)

1,226,446 964,596

Share of associates’ profits DIGEEE A RN 8 23,685 50,106

Share of a joint venture’s loss DiEEELEESIE 9 (2,866) (5,195)

Profit before taxation B 352 A4 ) 1,247,265 1,009,507

Taxation BB 24 (179,685) (199,559)

Profit for the year FE N F 1,067,580 809,948

Attributable to: BT AL :

Equity shareholders of the Company RARIERFFEA 1,067,580 809,948
Earnings per share (HK cents per share) BREF (BREM)

- Basic — &K 26 75.54 cents &l 57.03 cents &Il

— Diluted —B¥E 26 75.45 cents 1l 56.96 cents &l
Dividends attributable to equity shareholders #2518 A FEILALE

Final dividend proposed R AR AR S 25()) 320,100 243,000

The notes on pages 78 to 183 form part of these financial statements.
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B CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FeREMEEKAR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -ZTH+_A=+—HILFE

2020 2019

—BCoBE —T-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Profit for the year FREN 1,067,580 809,948
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax: FREMEEWA - R -

Exchange differences PE 3 Z%E 368,318 50,067
Total comprehensive income for the year FREERALLE 1,435,898 860,015
Attributable to: PPN 3

Equity shareholders of the Company RARERFFEA 1,435,898 860,015
The notes on pages 78 to 183 form part of these financial statements. F78E18BBE LM RAMB®RK 2 —HHD
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY s
REERBERERE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z-_TH+_A=+—HILtFE

Equity

attributable to

Capital the Company's

redemption Translation Retained equity

Share capital ~ Share premium reserve  Capital reserve  General reserve reserve  Other reserve  Deferred reserve eamings  sharholders
KLARERE

s RfeE  EAREER EriiR ~iE Exfif AR it REEA NEfgE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000

Tén Thn Tin TEn Tén Thn TEn TEn Thn Tén
ot ot o o Note ) ot Noe
g i iy ity i 5]
Balance as at 1 January 2019 REE-NE-f-AeEs 145,786 867,392 7,934 6,201 174318 (292.447) (84.239) (67,908) 4289679 5,046,722
Proft for he year ERi - - - - - - - - 809948 809,948
Other compreensive income Ef2ENA - - - - - 50,067 - - - 50,067
Total comprehensie income for he year ERRENASE - - - - - 50,067 - - 809948 860,015
Diend pad Bhike - - - - - - - - 8 20908
Transfer of eserve fREs - - - - 37670 - - - (37670) -
Shre options exercised BEfRERE 14 4750 - (1,68 - - - - - 3,206
Deferred shares purchased BEEETRY - - - - - - - (14,100) - (14,100)
Shares repurchased BEERA
—Parvlle -AE (59) - - - - - - - - (396)
— i pid -EfE - - - - - - - - (19867 (1967)
— Transfer between resenves -ERRER - - 5% - - - - - (396) -
Balance s at 31 December 2019 R-E-NETZA=1-R
i 145,334 812,142 8,530 4519 211,988 242,380 (84,239) (82,008) 4820586 5654472
Representing; f%:
Share capta o 145,33
Resenes B 5,266,138
Proposed diidend Riks 243000
5,654412
Balance as at 1 January 2020 RoZ-BE-F-Hrks 145,334 872,142 8,530 4519 211,988 (242,380 (84,289 (82,008) 4,820,586 5,654,472
Proft for the year EEA| - - - - - - - - 1,067,560 1,067,580
Other compreensive income ELETON - - - - - 368,318 - - - 368,318
Total comprehensive income for the year FmRENAEE - - - - - 368,318 - - 1,067,580 1,435,898
Dividend paid Bffke - - - - - - - - (242,413) (242413
Transfer of eserve fEREs - - - - 50,083 - - - (59,089) -
Shre options exercised BEfiERE 288 8,768 - (2976) - - - - - 6,080
Deferred shares purchased BEEELERN - - - - - - - (37,920 - (37.920)
Vesting of defered shares FlERAEE - - - - - - - 16,072 - 16,072
Sheres repurchased BEERR
—Parvalue -HE {17 - - - - - - - - (17
— Premium paid -offEE - - - - - - - - (5726) (5,726)
— Transter befween reserves -ETEE - - m - - - - - (17 -
Balance s at 31 December 2020 S S
bi 145,445 880,910 8,707 1,543 2, 125,938 (84,239 (103,856) 5,580,767 6,826,286
Representing &
Share captel i 145,445
Resenes ki 6,360,741
Proposed didend Hihe 320,100
6,826,286
The notes on pages 78 to 183 form part of these financial statements. F78E183AZMEARAT KK — D -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

4R

rEEDmSBRK(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -ZTH+_A=+—HILFE

Notes:

(i

(i)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

76  VSTECS Holdings Limited

The share premium account of the Group includes: (a) the difference between
the nominal values of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired and that
of the Company issued in exchange pursuant to the Group reorganisation
in April 2002; (b) the capitalisation issue in April 2002; and (c) the premium
arising from the new issue of shares, net of share issuance costs.

In accordance with the Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium account is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The share premium may also
be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

The capital redemption reserve comprises the par value of the cancelled shares
of the Company transferred from retained earnings pursuant to Companies
Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands.

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual or estimated
number of unexercised share options granted to employees and directors of
the Company and the Group recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in Note 2.17(d).

According to the current Company Law of the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”), the PRC subsidiaries of the Group are required to transfer 10% of
their profits after taxation to the statutory surplus reserve until the statutory
surplus reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. For the purpose
of calculating the amount to be transferred to the reserve, the profit after
taxation is the amount determined under PRC accounting standards. The
amount of transfer to this reserve has to be made before profit distribution
to shareholders. In accordance with the relevant regulations, this reserve may
be used to make up any losses incurred or to increase the registered capital
of the PRC subsidiaries.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements of subsidiaries outside Hong
Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in Note 2.3(c).

Other reserve comprises the difference between the consideration paid and
the relevant share of the carrying value of net assets of subsidiaries for the
transactions with holders of non-controlling interests of subsidiaries (Note
2.2(a).

Deferred reserve comprises the cost of acquisition of the Company’s shares
through a trust setup specifically for the purpose of employment compensation.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2.13(c).
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT I
ReLaRERE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z-_TH+_A=+—HILtFE

2020 2019
b S 23 —E-NEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BiizE THER TET
Cash flows from operating activities mEEE RenE
Net cash generated from operations WEHE/ (B ZBREF8 28(a) 2,784,304 1,388,689
Hong Kong Profits Tax received/(paid) B/ (BH) 2 BBFIEH 59,352 (16,276)
Tax paid outside Hong Kong BREBRINEE (227,370) (226,500)
Net cash generated from operating activities BEEBDMERETE 2,616,286 1,146,904
Cash flows from investing activities REFE BENE
Interest received =2 Gik) 13,916 39,992
Payment for purchase of property, plant and BEME - BERREORR
equipment (24,977) (35,605)
Payment for purchase of intangible assets BREEFEENTR (4,404) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENE - BE RSERERE
plant and equipment 4,187 1,350
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired YEE—RMELAR - MEMkE s Re 30 (11,172) -
Dividends received from associates EREmEARRE 14,943 7,130
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activites R EEEN(FTA),/FiiE 2B 454 (7,507) 12,867
Cash flows from financing activities A RENE
Capital element of lease rentals paid ERNHERSEAS S 28(0) (115,109) (74,357)
Payment for the repurchase of shares BRI (5,903) (20,463)
Proceeds from exercise of share options TR RIERTS R 6,080 3,206
Proceeds from new bank loans HIERITENFTS A 28(0) 20,181,388 22,149,396
Repayment of borrowings BEEE 28(b) (21,371,075) (21,915,005)
Net proceeds from other financial liabilities Hit e RBEMSHETE 28(b) 120,791 -
Payment for deferred shares BRI (37,920) (14,100)
Vesting of deferred shares EERHEE 16,072 -
Interest paid BAFIE 28(b) (193,908) (295,616)
Dividend paid BRAE (242,413 (220,908)
Net cash used in from financing activities RBEHA RS FE (1,641,997 (387,847
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Re kR eZEMEMFER 966,782 771,924
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BZREEBRLSEY 2,327,702 1,508,060
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEEREE FE 264,708 47,718
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+ZRA=+—HZRERALZEN 12 3,559,192 2,327,702
The notes on pages 78 to 183 form part of these financial statements. F78E18BE M AAYMBRER 2 —HH

BUEGERRBRERAT —Z-=ggR (1



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rt %5 30 = B &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

General Information

VSTECS Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the development of information
technology (“IT”) product channel and provision of technical solution
integration services. The three major business segments are enterprise
systems which provides enterprise system tools for IT infrastructure
and IT infrastructure design and implementation, training, maintenance
and support services; Consumer electronics which provides finished
IT products; and cloud computing which provides cloud computing
solutions and services.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. Its principal place of business is at Unit 3312, 33rd Floor,
China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on The Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by
the Board of Directors on 25 March 2021.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below. The HKICPA has issued certain
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the Group. None of
these developments have had a material effect on how the Group’s
results and financial position for the current or prior periods have
been prepared or presented. The Group has not applied any new
standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(*HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 comprise the Group and the Group’s interests
in associates and a joint venture.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis except certain financial assets and liabilities are
carried at their fair values as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continuea)

2.2

80 VSTECS Holdings Limited

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have effect on the financial statements and sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 4.

Consolidation

(@)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continuea)

(@

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of other comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of
non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with notes 2.14, 2.15 and 2.18 depending
on the nature of the liability.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(@

82 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 2.9) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or a joint venture (see note 2.2(b)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2.7), unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continuea)

(b)

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
Company has significant influence, but not control or
joint control, over its management, including participation
in the financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
the Company and other parties contractually agree to
share control of the arrangement, and have rights to the
net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of
the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment (see note 2.7). At each reporting date, the
Group assesses whether there is any objective that the
investment is impaired. Any acquisition-date excess over
cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
other comprehensive income.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

84 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Associates and joint ventures

(continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate or the joint venture, the Group’s
interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further
losses is discontinued except to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations

or made payments on behalf of the investee. For this
purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of
the investment under the equity method together with
the Group’s long-term interests that in substance form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or
the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate and joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

Associates and joint ventures

(continued)

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former investee at the date when
significant influence or joint control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note
2.9).

2.3 Foreign currency translation

(@

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$"), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation (continuea)

(b)

86 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the entity
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was measured.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation (continuea)

(©)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities are translated at the closing
rate at the reporting date;

(if) income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations and
other currency instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to other comprehensive income.
When a foreign operation is sold, exchange differences
that were recorded in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss
on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.
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2. TEEHHERBE
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment

88 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Property, plant and equipment, including right-of-use assets
arising from leases of underlying property, plant and equipment,
is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the costs of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
values, if any, on a straight line basis over the shorter of the
unexpired period of lease and the anticipated remaining useful
lives of the assets. The annual rates of depreciation which have
been adopted are summarised as follows:

Buildings held for own use carried at cost & X AN FE R FH1EE AEF

Right-of-use assets arising from leases of properties, plant and
equipment 1% - BE MR EREMEEANFTREEE

Furniture and fixtures (X A R K &

Office equipment ¥ A = & &

Computers &

Motor vehicles /T

Leasehold improvements & ¥ % # &

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.

Annual Report 2020

mE - BERIXE(EZHED
X BEARBHERELNE
RREE)EKAMKRFTNER
WEERIIR - KA RS KER
BEREGZAX -

<y

EEHEEAARZAK Lo
AEREERAREE - Hegr St
FAEZER ZKAER - TEFE
BZRAFAEEZRESZEX
HRA—BRBUEE(NER) -
MEHEMEECRFREER BN
EEZVBBMERAERSRAEN -

=
==}
N
BE

ME - BELRERERBEZFED
R ZERBZHARBER
(WmAE)R - REEZKERHEH
REFAHNGAUEAFRAAREE
RE)NEREFE  AMBEK
Koo IR EFERBPRT -

2% - 5%

Unexpired term of lease
REEAHEFIR

20%

20%

20%

20%

20% or lease period whichever is shorter

20%skFEHA (ABE & R2%E)

EEZRBEELATERFHR
SMmEHRBAN AR (ER)



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7 3R 2R B E (&)
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEEFTHERBE

(continued) (&)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 2.4 W% - BERZB®)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (see note 2.7).

Gains or losses on retirement or disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amounts. These are included in profit or loss
on the date of retirement or disposal.

Assets under construction represent property, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation and are
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any (see
note 2.7). Cost includes the costs of construction of buildings,
the costs of plant and machinery and interest charges arising
from borrowings used to finance these assets during the period
of construction or installation and testing. No provision for
depreciation is made on assets under construction until such
time as the relevant assets are available for their intended use.
When the assets concerned are brought into use, the costs
are transferred to items of property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated above.
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2. TEEHHERBE

(%)

25 BILEE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.5 Intangible assets

90 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful
life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 2.7). Expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets with finite useful lives
are amortised from the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:
Software 10%
Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life of
an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to support the
indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they do not,
the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite
is accounted for prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation of intangible assets
with finite lives as set out above.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEEFTHERBE

(continued) (&)
2.6 Goodwill 2.6 &

Goodwill represents the excess of: FEENTME ZHNZE5

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration () FEEREHQFTE - ®
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in WESTEMIEERERD S
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously B RN B I AT UREE
held equity interest in the acquiree; over Ffr BFRAEZOHOATFEZE

0 R

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and (i) #WREFINKEBHRATE

liabilities measured as at the acquisition date. AHAMNEERBENFR
FAE o

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised B)VRR0)E - LEBLARIE

immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase. m=EPERAZEB KRB E -

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. B AR R REEET

Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each R - EXEBetmEEZBAES K

cash generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is ZEEHARKEMNHBRBEFRZ

expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and BErERESEEBRSEEE N

is tested annually for impairment (see note 2.7). WEFERBEASR(RWRT2.7) -

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any REFRALERSELASENR - B

attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the BABREEMG AT ESEIRE

calculation of the gain or loss on disposal. HHERBHMAEF -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEEFTHERBE

(continued) (&)
2.7 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates, 27 RMEAR ~ BEELQF -
a joint venture and other non-financial assets SELXRRHMIFNBEE
ENREZBE

B
i
i
i

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at EEEBREHAEMR
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that the HRINAER - LEBEHNB A

investments in subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture and Al CHMEARRAGELENKE
other non-financial assets may be impaired or, except in the case UERHEMIFECHEERSDS LR
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer B xst - REE - BT
exists or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, REBREEBEESE ITBEFAER
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for g o MHER LMK - (E
goodwill, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether SEFZEENATHRE S5 - L
or not there is any indication of impairment. The recoverable I THERLBRBED R

amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal AEEHeEFAGHEN]E
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future e AINEEBEREEZR
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax FEMBREEXRAEGEHAEEM
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the EhzBREE  CEAHEAEE
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. B MErRERBERERAUR

MEETISY EEHEEREE
K AR S 2 BB R
BRI EHE -

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped HBEBNRAMES - EE&EE AT
together into the smallest group of assets that generates BRFEFRATREERBBIRE
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent tEENEEMLRBMEEENIR
of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the ERAZERNEEARN(TRESE
“cash generating unit”). The goodwill acquired in a business EBM])  cBRBAENRME - %
combination, for the purpose of impairment testing, is allocated BEHKES EHE DK EEH
to those cash generating units or groups of cash generating units BREEBEZEBEHPRE
that are expected to benefit from the business combination in CHeEFENNREEEEM
which the goodwill arose. “anl e
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEEFTHERBE

(continued) (&)

2.7 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates, 27 RB AR ~ BiE AR »
a joint venture and other non-financial assets EELERHMIMEE
(continued) ENREZRE#)

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of HMEBEEXHERSESSNZE®R
an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated SHEBEHANKkE 2% - Qe
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in BRREBE - HEBBEBNIEZR
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash BERA®R mMEESELSEMNER
generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount ZREEBERSER @ £HED
of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the REZEE8UNTAEE2ER®
carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units) £ BIELOIBEZSEC(EAM
on a pro rata basis. BEADPEMEEZRESE -
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is MEEUIINZEEmMS @ HAKN
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates EroalkpesE s HHEBEAER
used to determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of an ZE) > BBEBREER - BEES
impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that Br7ELONEENRNBEFEFERER
would have been determined had no impairment loss been BEEBEANBRITRESEETZE
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are ENEEDS%E - BOZREEEIE
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are MRIEREER 2 FET A AEBEZERN
recognised.
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock WIEBMITAE S _}: iR A&
Exchange, the Group is required to prepare an interim financial EEERELSSEAE3IGFESF
report in compliance with HKAS 34 Interim financial reporting in B EREEL G BEREE N E
respect of the first six months of the financial period. At the end AZPHBBERSE - RPHIH™H
of the interim period, the Group applies the same impairment LR AEFEEPAENB RS
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end EREREFTEBEMRR Z W E
of the financial year. =2 R LEOAER
Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect A FhER ﬁ,q Mo EEm2 2 RmEE
of goodwill are not reversed in the subsequent period. This is BlrTelNEBEREEL - BN
the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been BEAHETPHBEBREE 2V RE
recognised had the impairment been assessed only at the end EEREFESY X AHSE
of the financial year to which the interim period relates. RABEIERZ2EEREE@RK
o FEIERINEEE -
muaxpRERan —T-Tasn 93



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8 Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses.

()  Measurement of expected credit losses (“ECLS”)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the Group
is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

94 VSTECS Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8 Trade and other receivables (continued)

U)

Measurement of ECLS (continued)

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors and
an assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises a
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.

ZoREF_A=+-HULFE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(i)

96 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on the
financial instrument assessed at the reporting date with
that assessed at the date of initial recognition. In making
this reassessment, the Group considers that a default
event occurs when (i) the debtor is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any
is held); or (i) the financial asset is past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(i)

(i)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised
as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note 2.21(iii)
is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

98 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Basis of calculation of interest income

(continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BF 7% R R B R (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEEFTHERBE

(continued) (%)
2.8 Trade and other receivables (continued) 2.8 BEZRHMBEWRIE )
(v  Offsetting (v) i
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the TRMEEHEMBES EE
net amount presented in the statement of financial position B TeRBEEeERNEAE
when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally EBREBERENRNDZE
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either FMEKELE - B ERF
to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and HEESE  JIRAKBEE
settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expenses BELEBEFER  FE
are presented on a net basis only when permitted under EWMBARRKES FHE -
relevant accounting standards, or for gains and losses WEEHEgT LR Z
arising from a group of similar transactions such as in the BAT st —HEURS
Group’s trading activity. (FIMAEE 2R ZEE)E
EEEF - HERFEER
W o
2.9 Investments in debt and equity securities and other 29 EEREREFREUR

financial assets

Investments in debt and equity securities and other financial
assets are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the assets or they expire. These
assets are initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those investments measured at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”) for which transaction
costs are recognised directly in profit or loss. For an explanation
of how the Group determines fair value of financial instruments,
see note 3.3. These investments are subsequently accounted
for as follows, depending on their classification:

Hittem&EE

BEERETEFREAREMS
BEERAEBABZEA LE
EENEEFNHED FUER

RIEHER - ZSEEVSEAF
ENEZEEGERIRATE -
BAFENABREE(TRAFEE
FABZREDIEZRENR S
RAEENEBZRTPER - BH
AEENHErTeRITAEMNAQF
B F2HWFE3.3 - ZEREEH
BIRBEDBEIRATHEARE

()  Investments and other financial assets other than () BEaREIIZERERE
equity investments fih & B & &=

Non-equity investments and other financial assets held REBABENIERERE

by the Group are classified into one of the following LEMEREE 2‘ DERT

measurement categories: YIFtEEAz—

- amortised cost, if the assets are held for the - HBEAARN(WZEED
collection of contractual cash flows which represent RWEERRAE K
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest FMEMENBRERE
income from the assets is calculated using the miEE) BEFMSFH
effective interest method (see note 2.21(iii)). BWRATIRAERF

BEFTEMF(RME
2.21(iii)) e
mugxpRERes —z-zssx 99
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.9 Investments in debt and equity securities and other
financial assets (continued)

() Investments and other financial assets other than
equity investments (continued)

100 vSTECS Holdings Limited

fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”) — recycling, if the contractual cash
flows of the assets comprise solely payments of
principal and interest and the assets are held within
a business model whose objective is achieved by
both the collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition
in profit or loss of expected credit losses, interest
income (calculated using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the assets are derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income is
recycled from equity to profit or loss.

FVPL if the assets do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the assets (including
interest) are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.9 Investments in debt and equity securities and other
financial assets (continued)

(i

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an election to designate the investment at
FVOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where
such an election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of.
At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in the
fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to retained
earnings. It is not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends
from an investment in equity securities, irrespective of
whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised
in profit or loss as other income in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2.21(iv).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.10 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value. At
the end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured.
The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

2.11 Inventories

Inventories comprise IT products for distribution and are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined using the weighted average cost formula.
The cost of finished goods comprises all costs of purchase and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. It excludes borrowing costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7 3R 2R B E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEEFTHERBE

(continued) (&)

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents QRBRERBEEEY

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash
flow statement. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
ECL in accordance with the policy set out in note 2.8.

2.13 Share capital

RelBEeSEVRERTRE
R RB|OLEMCSBER
ZEEE R - A RFT DARE B # i
REHcBERcEBEEZYAR
AR EEBAKR=FEA R H
ZHEHBERPUERE - HEER
EREWMRME  REEXREER
MEBEKAEERSEE -2
RITEX > Nt ARBRTERRE
EEMz—®Mn  HEeRkAEEF
BYHREM 2.8 B R TE
HEEBBEEHTG -

2.13 B A

(@)  Ordinary shares (a) ETiEE
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs TRRDBEAER « #17
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options FROIEREEEEWGZ
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the BEKAERBREREZT
proceeds. T AFTISFIB 2 R EE -

(b)  Repurchase of shares (b) HEEERH
When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, REEERREZ ZRKRA
the amount of the consideration paid, which includes B A zRESE(R
directly attributable costs is recognised as a deduction FEEEERA)ERAEZ
from equity. Repurchased shares are presented as a R - BBEERHI A
deduction from total equity. Bk 2 HMBEE -

(c) Deferred reserve (c) IRIEfEE

Deferred reserve represented the cost of acquisition of
the Company’s shares through a trust setup specifically
for purpose of employment compensation. The reserve is
credited with the amount of fair value of shares on granting
to awardees, and the relevant employment costs net of
any proceeds from the awarded shares are debited to
the profit or loss. The difference between the fair value
of the awarded shares and their costs of acquisition is
transferred to retained earnings.

EREREBIERFERRER
MERINEREBEARF
Bz A - ZEEzE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEEFTHERBE

104 VSTECS Holdings Limited

(continued) (&)
2.14 Trade and other payables and contract liabilities QUEZREMEBEMFIEUR
BHEE

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value. B REMENRETRIE
Except for financial guarantee liabilities, trade and other payables BERR BKREEREE ﬁl\ '
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective SREMENKREBERIIUE
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be T'J B /Z REEXARTE - BRI EE
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. R BN K - RIERRARSIER -

A Financial guarantee is contract that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payment to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantees issued are initially recognized within “trade and
other payables” at fair value, which is determined by reference
to fees charged in arm’s length transaction for similar services.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the term of
the guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. The
Group monitors the risk that the specified debtor will default on
the contract and recognises a provision when ECLs (see notes
2.8 (i) and (ii)) on the financial guarantees are determined to be
higher than the amount carried in “trade and other payables”
in respect of the guarantees.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays non-
refundable consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue (see note 2.21). A contract liability would also
be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised (see note 2.8).

Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.15 Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and the redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

2.16 Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also
arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

2. TEEHHERBE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T _THF+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEEFTHERBE

(continued) (&)
2.16 Income tax (continued) 216 FRT B (&)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, B TETERENEKRIB R

and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that FTERELEHREBEEGEY FHER M
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset B IEEEREATEE A B S
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may EHREZRBRENIRFEZERLT

support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from FLAER - ArfENEHE=R
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise PELSRELEREBEEE - B RIK
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, FEERENNYEmMEIER

provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority BEAEL BN GEENERHRET
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either BEHEEZEmMELANSEE: XS
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible EONEENBER -GS
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising KR —ERHMELAER - 178
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. ErAENMERE=EE:t80E 8
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether B —HEREERBEERE
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition H B B TS BT 18 A [A) 12 BA X (m) BT BB
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, EEANEBRNER AEBETIREB
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to ERREREMEEERTXERR
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and AHEBREBELERELSD
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the EERBEEER  T2XBHERA
tax loss or credit can be utilised. R - EEMEERER —HB

HEALKFR-—ERHEREH - A
B EANHAMBABREIXELN
HEARE  AAEEREFE

£ o

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets MERHEEMmM=S - AEF T
and liabilities are those temporary differences relating to BEmEEEZER R EAEKR
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of AT eD A HNB=E=E
taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal mMs WMRECLCHBEAENABRE
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the ZHEBEAIINMGRN BENF B A G
foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences, EEENBRRZEZE  KBREZEE
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future. BNA] B KK Al e E o

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on EHRELEH BB DNEBERE
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying NEGEERE2 EBRERAEE
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted ARG EH KRB EE B M
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. ZHREAE EEMBEENLSA
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted. BT EBLEIR -

106 VSTECS Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

2. TEEHHERBE

(%)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.16 Income tax (continued) 216 FTEH (&)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

ELERBEERAERERARS
HIRETRS - WEFRKERE
RATBEEIZES B E RV R
MAGE AT ENERSEEERA
HINEE - A REHREEER
FCETERT A E SR B R BRI FE
ROELEHAEEREE °

A B B EE A B BB S P AS B R B
R HEER S BEERER -

AEBIENELERE 2 &8 R E
28 HEAIPABRIETIER
oo WA N THREIMEMSE - M
ZAYNI N TR R RN
BEERBERBEBE ZEFE
Mo AHRBEEERREERESE
E o RAHHEBERBEEETENA
BET R

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company - mEHBNBEBEELRAGEM
or the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to = AN T SRAEBEZ IR
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or FREAEELEE (RSN

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.17 Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

(@)  Pension obligations
The Group operates defined contribution retirement
plans, the assets of which are held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The retirement plans are generally
funded by payments from employees and by the relevant
Group companies. For employees in the PRC, the Group
participates in defined contribution retirement plans
organised by the relevant local governments in the PRC.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when they are due. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

108 vSTECS Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (continuea)

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the statement
of financial position date. Employee entitlements to sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses taking into account the profit attributable to
the Company’s shareholders. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a
past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the trinomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted.

Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.

2. TEEHHERBE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B I ER R PTAE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEEFTHERBE

(continued) (%)
2.17 Employee benefits (continued) Q17 EERA (&)
(d)  Share-based payments (continued) (d) BRI (E)
During the vesting period, the number of options that is EHteREBREZA
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment EBREBEHARNEE Lt
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years HBAFEEERAZ AR
is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of the FEEHEMARE  BARH
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for NEBEZESBERNNR
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment MNEEBEBREREBEEZRAR
to the capital reserve. On the vesting date, the amount BERIBRI)  TEEHEK
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the HEBELAERARE - NGB
actual number of options that vest (with a corresponding HE - BEMERAEHI 2T E
adjustment to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture SEHAE  UIRMEESE
is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate BrERESE  TeHE
to the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity AEGEELEHEERARE  #R
amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either ReciEKR A BAN TG
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share mEZGBEEmMEKZIE
premium account) or the option expires (when it is released RN o EEELE KRR
directly to retained earnings). HBAER BEEREREE
THERFEEZERSRERK
REREINHSEEERR
REBBNRBI -
(¢)  Deferred shares (e) ELERRMD
Deferred shares are awarded to employees who meet the BEREKEBIKERKER
vesting condition (see note 2.13(c)). FEIER D (R H5E2.13(c)) °
2.18 Provisions and contingent liabilities QIBBERIAREE
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing EARAEEBSALNTRERBEESHM
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or R ZEKEESE  BETE
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is HEEAREELENR Y -
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required WA S EE AT G - BN
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. BYHRHNSEITHRELBER
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated REBEE fEEXEEHEEBE
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the KN BBgERERETETHRE
obligation. 2 BREMER -
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits WM AKAEZERERERZ R L
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, sEET AT ABLRE Bl
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the EETVBEEANREBE  BIEL
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible EF S S Y AT AE M AR M o AT 4E
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the AEZEF(HEEESEERR
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are BEE—TBRZEAREHER)
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of NHEEANARBE  BIELHEF
outflow of economic benefits is remote. o 2 AT B MERR A o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.19 Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Control is conveyed where the customer has both the right to
direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from that use.

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-
lease component(s), the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components
as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
and leases of low-value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those leases
which are not capitalised are recognised as an expense
on a systematic basis over the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.19 Leases (continued)

U)

112 VSTECS Holdings Limited

As a lessee (continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using
the effective interest method. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or rate are not included
in the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the
cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset
or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which
it is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see note 2.7).
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.19 Leases (continued)

U)

As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index
or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of
the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted for
as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification. The only exceptions are any rent
concessions which arose as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic and which satisfied the conditions
set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In
such cases, the Group took advantage of the practical
expedient set out in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 and
recognised the change in consideration as if it were not
a lease modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the
current portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined
as the present value of contractual payments that are
due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting
period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEEFTHERBE

(continued) (&)
2.19 Leases (continued) 219 & (#)
(i) As a lessor (i) ERHMEA
When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease WAEEEADEA R
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an HERBKRETSHERSD
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if ARMEHENKERE - &
it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental HMEEZRAEERRITHE
to the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If MR KEFR - HES
this is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating HAemEWRE - BA M
lease. When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub- BRIk fﬂ o W A&
leases are classified as a finance lease or as an operating BENTEHBEA - 28D
lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from K2 ZEBEEEEERE
the head lease. BENPEABMEMENKL S
HE -
2.20 Segment reporting 220 P EBHRE
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item BEDBRNMBHREANZER Z
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the ENEEBESEHE EHIEM
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most AEEGRETHREREAS - ‘/{
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating HAEBESEBLASHERETE
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s BORERRBETEH 2B ER S
various lines of business and geographical locations. Bl e
Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for BRIESBEBERUZEBERH L
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar FEREBRBED  £EIFME
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature B RPEANER AR HE
of products and services, the nature of production processes, ERSRERE A EUREE
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute REHESTEHMAEAMN  TAZEE
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the RNig&&E»n ﬁB TERTHRSEE D
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not ZEHE - WMERNEERZKE
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority DEFE LR KRB HIFEE - BIA
of these criteria. ZEHE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7 3R 2R B E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEEFTHERBE

(continued) (&)

2.21 Revenue and other income 2.21 W R H At A
Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from RAEEREEBREFE @ H
the sale of goods or the provision of services in the ordinary EXEHERBE  AEEBFKA
course of the Group’s business. DEAERE -
Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service EERIMBOEHEERER
is transferred to the customer, at the amount of promised P - RS B R H A R
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled, ERETERERANE - TEER
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties. KE=ZFRBHIFIE - m L
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is FEIMERIEMEER - WEM
after deduction of any trade discounts. BRERZE S -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B I ER R PTAE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.21 Revenue and other income (continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

()  Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

(i) Service fees
Revenue from service maintenance contracts are
recognised over the period of the contract.

(il Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(iv)  Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the right to receive payment is established.

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

(v)  Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BF 7% R R B R (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.22 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the directors (for interim
dividends) or approved by the shareholders (for final dividends).

2.23 Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:
(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
Group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a Group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 3% R AR B R (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.23 Related parties (continueq)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)
(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which itis a
part, provides key management personnel services

to the Group or the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

BHEEREERATVE
181 5 LB [ 3

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3.

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks
including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management program
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial

REBZEBKAZIINERRE « F
EER - 55 RB &R MERRE
ELEWBREE o NEB ) EE
HA”@ﬁﬂéiﬁﬂm%ZT
AIFEAM  TESRKE|FEHREEHAX

performance. ’ilﬁﬁi%fﬁz/ TR L -
(@)  Foreign exchange risk (a) HMEE B

The Group operates in various countries and the assets
and liabilities are mainly denominated in the functional
currency of group entity to which relate, including Chinese
Renminbi (‘RMB”), the Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$”), the
Singapore Dollar (“S$”), Thai Baht (“THB”) and Indonesian
Rupiah (“RP”).

The Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk at the
end of reporting period is mainly arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in the United States
Dollar (“US$”), a currency other than the Group’s entities’
functional currencies, as disclosed elsewhere in

the financial statements.

A 5% strengthening/weakening of the US$ against the
respective functional currencies of the Group’s entities
(except for HK$ which is pegged to US$) at 31 December
2020 would have decreased/increased the post-tax profit
and retained earnings of the Group by HK$71,300,000
(2019: HK$88,279,000). This analysis assumes that
all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant. The analysis has been performed on the same
basis as for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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B BREARE BT
MET -~ BHKKREERE -
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(FBERMBRREMELHR

%)

FA—%—?$+—H:+

CERLHAEEE S
*ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%iéﬁ%(iﬁi%nmﬁﬁ
mBTTHRIN) AERE
5%  ELAKEE BB E
A AR BB B AR A
71,300,000 T( =& — 1L
E 88279000,%7c) az
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B I ER R PTAE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

120 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates is
mainly attributable to its bank borrowings, details of which
have been disclosed in note 19. Borrowings carried at
floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk.

At 31 December 2020, if the interest rates on bank
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax
profit and retained earnings for the year would have been
HK$56,420,000 (2019: HK$67,345,000) lower/higher,
mainly as a result of higher/ lower interest expense on
floating rate bank borrowings.

Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continueq)

(©)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss
to the Group.

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables and
cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial
assets. The exposures to these credit risks are closely
monitored on an ongoing basis by established credit
policies and procedures.

Cash and cash equivalents are mainly deposited in various
financial institutions, which management believes are of
high quality. Management does not expect any loss from
non-performance by these counterparties.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables. The Group has put in place policies to ensure
that sales of products are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history and the Group performs periodic
credit evaluations of its customers. The Group’s historical
loss experience in collection of trade receivables falls
within the recorded allowances.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience indicates significantly different loss patterns
in different geographical locations, the loss allowance
based on past due status is further distinguished by
geographical locations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B I ER R PTAE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)  Credit risk (continued)

3. MBEREERAFE

(%)

3.1 I EREZE#)

EERR &)

The following tables provide information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables:

TREHRBABEAKENE S
& W3R IR P T B 15 B BB K2

TEEEEBENER
2020
—ECEF
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate % amount allowance
FEHEELEEY BREAAE EBERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT TERT
North Asia it
Current (not past due) BNER (R Ep) * 9,023,160 -
1-90 days past due #H12=90H 0.39% 1,149,109 4,480
More than 90 days past due #EIZ N 00H 60.20% 955,240 575,070
11,127,509 579,550
Southeast Asia REE
Current (not past due) BUER (R#@HP) 0.05% 1,899,954 1,003
1-90 days past due #WHI1 908 0.20% 722,279 1,474
More than 90 days past due BEIZH00H 69.45% 129,938 90,246
2,752,171 92,723
Total Fk-c) 13,879,680 672,273

*

expected loss rate is immaterial
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BF 7% R R B R (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. M¥XERBEERATE

(continued) (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continueq) 3.1

(c)  Credit risk (continued)

0 YRS ENE )

(c) EERR &)

2019
—E-NF
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate % amount allowance
TEEESE L E % ARE AR [E R
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT
North Asia b=
Current (not past due) BNER (RiEg) 0.02% 8,699,970 1,602
1-90 days past due #HI1Z290H 0.53% 1,114,821 5,859
More than 90 days past due #EIZH00H 62.71% 688,437 431,704
10,508,228 439,165
Southeast Asia ek
Current (not past due) BUER (R#@HP) * 1,714,931 -
1-90 days past due #mHE1Z=90H * 893,843 -
More than 90 days past due #HIZ 7A90H 62.45% 122,013 76,195
2,730,787 76,195
Total “BFE 13,234,015 515,360

*

expected loss rate is immaterial

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

* EHERELEE

EHERLEDRBENERE
BEBRE ZEHLETHRH
B URBREBERFESBERFED
BEANR - B AR A R AR K E
HEWRIER IR B H A
RBERRZEBENER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B I ER R PTAE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. MBXEBEERATHE

(continued) (#&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BIERBEZ &)

()  Credit risk (continued) (c) =ERK (&)
Movements of the loss allowance for trade receivables BoEWRIBEBERE &
are as follows: BT :

2020 2019

—EBCEF —F-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

At 1 January ®n—HA—H 515,360 513,545
Amounts written off EMiESE (14,439) (99,968)

Provision recognised during the year R E R TERHEE 143,452 107,922
Exchange difference E N =58 27,900 (6,139)

At 31 December ®w+—-A=+—H 672,273 515,360

124 vSTECS Holdings Limited

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding from
an adequate amount of credit facilities. The Group’s
treasury department maintains flexibility in funding by
keeping credit lines available.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s
liquidity reserve comprising undrawn facilities and
cash and cash equivalents, on the basis of expected
cash flows. The table below analyses the contractual
undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s financial
liabilities (including financial guarantee mentioned
in note 10) into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the reporting date to the
contractual maturity date.

Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7 3R 2R B E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE -

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. M¥XERBEERATE

(continued) (&)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 BIAEREZE &)
(d)  Liquidity risk (continued) (d) RENMERRR(EZ)
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
FBREHRERE
Less than 1
oron Between1and Between 2 and
Total  demand year 2 years Syears  After 5 years
88 -ERYREX 3 ZERE RBLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T
At 31 December 2020 R-E-EE+-A=+-H
Bank borrowings FITEE 6,966,259 6,966,259 - - -
Lease liabilities HEERE 21,113 102,786 70,586 78,531 45,870
Trade and other payables B REMERFE 14,699,750 14,699,750 - - -
At 31 December 2019 RIE-AE+ZA=+-H
Bank borrowings REE 8,340,730 6,794,703 1,546,027 - -
Lease liabilities BENERE 291,742 95,123 56,189 84,079 56,351
Trade and other payables BAREMENTE 10,346,223 10,346,223 - - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. M¥XERBEERATE

(continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

(%)

3.2 EXEBmERE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt/total
assets ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
assets. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings excluding
lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents.

The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure as at
31 December 2020:

AEBERERAZBNRERAE
SEERENFEZE  UREX
MO H LR HEMBEDEREMRF
@ URERREERARBIUR
EERKA -

REFIHABELRARB K&
EXEgRBERNTREZERES
B MBRRBEEER  BITHR

AEEREEFE BAELE
EEALN - R EREKIER
NREENE - EHEERAR
E(TREMERAE)ARERA
SZEYHYE -

TERAIMAERR B _ZF+
“A=tT—BHZERER:

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

. —TNF

t=A=+t—-8 +ZA=+—H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FER FAT

Total borrowings (Note 19) BIEE (M5E19) 6,750,812 8,017,112
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B HekREEEY

(Note 12) (Hiat12) (3,559,192) (2,327,702)

Net debt BERFER 3,191,620 5,689,410

Total assets BB E 29,425,571 24,936,069

Net debt/total assets ratio ERFEE BEELE 0.11 0.23
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. M¥XERBEERATE

(continued) (&)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 RE{EMET
()  Financial instruments measured at fair value (i) NRAFEFEZEHMIA
The following table presents the carrying value of the THREVNAEBRBIZKLEHEE
Group’s financial instruments measured at fair value at EUATFEFEZEHMITAE
the statement of financial position date on a recurring REERZEEE YUFE
basis across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy HEE R EEF135 A
defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”. The FEFAEIFMRAEZAFESE
level into which a fair value measurement is classified BZ2=EBHY R~ - A FEE
is determined with reference to the observability AEMEEZERIIRE
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation TEERMTAT A @ ASE 2
techniques as follows: AEREENERREETE:
o Level 1 valuations: fair values measured using only o FELEE: EFA
Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in F— A A SECE
active markets for identical assets and liabilities at HREEMBER 2
the measurement date HEAEIERMIEG 2 R
ABERE)GFTEZATF
&
. Level 2 valuations: Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable ° FE_EBREE: =
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using FYETIN L EHTHE\
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs FE—Bh 2 0] EBREG A
are inputs for which market data is not available FE)BEIRFAEK
PO EEEASE - T
TEE%@EIJ)\%ZTFE?&E
EEMSEEBEZHAH
B
° Level 3 valuations: fair values measured using . FE-EL&GHE: FTHE
significant unobservable inputs A B R g A BURE
E2RFE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B I ER R PTAE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continueq)

U)

(i)
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Financial instruments measured at fair value
(continued)

BHEEBREERLQTE

(%)

3.3 DEEMLE (&)

(i)

ARHEFEZERITEA
(#)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—EBHR F-EHR F=ER wam
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHEIT
At 31 December 2020 NR-BE-EHF
+=—A=+—H
Assets EE
Listed and unlisted securities FRIEETES 90,144 - 398,010 488,154
Other financial assets HEemEE - 847,255 - 847,255
Liabilities =R
Derivative financial liabilities PTEFBERE - 20,257 - 20,257
At 31 December 2019 NR-EBE—IEF
+=—A=+—H
Assets EE
Forward contracts REIA Y - 72,660 - 72,660
Listed and unlisted securities LRI LETES 78,087 100,000 206,933 385,020
Liabilities =R
Derivative financial liabilities PTEFBERE - 1,928 - 1,928

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
there were no transfers between the levels of fair value
hierarchy.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair
value measurements

The fair value of forward contracts in Level 2 is determined
by discounting the contractual forward price and deducting
the current spot rate. The discount rate used is derived
from the relevant government yield curve as at the end
of the reporting period plus an adequate constant credit
spread.

The fair value of other financial assets is the estimated
amount that the Group would realise, taking into
account the interest rates and credit worthiness of the
counterparties.

The fair value of securities in Level 2 is determined by

the Black-Scholes model. The volatility used is derived
from the historical quote price of the underlying securities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continueq)

(i)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

Approximate 64% (2019: 71%) of the Group’s unlisted
securities are related to healthcare sector. The rest are
related to various sectors including telecommunication
and e-commerce, etc. No dividend were received on those
investments during the year (2019: nil).

The fair value of these unlisted securities are determined
using adjusted net asset value. The fair value measurement
is positively correlated to the underlying assets’ values.
As at 31 December 2020, it is estimated that with
other variables held constant an increase/(decrease) in
5% of underlying assets’ values would have increased/
(decreased) the Group’s equity by HK$19,901,000 (2019:
HK$10,347,000).

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other
than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and liabilities carried at cost or amortised cost were not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 December
2019 and 2020.

3. U BEREERAVE

(%)

3.3 A EME &)

(iii)

BEERERARLE

EEAF=ZEL RN FEG
EZER

KREBIFELEMEFHFLNG64%
TE-NFT71%) HEE
RIBZERR - HpHBIEE
MMEFEEETRITEM
e RFATERUFIRE
EEBRE(ZE—hF: T)-

ZEFLETELNDFEFRE
ARARBEFEET - 2
FEHFEHNBEEEES
FTEHBEE RN-_T-_TF+
“A=+—8 WEHLES
WETE  FrtHBEEE
BEZN D) 5% EF
BMAEERAE N, Ckd)
19,901,000 T( =& — A,
110,347,000 7T) °

A ZER A BR 2 Bt 1%
BENBGBZRAFTE

Y2 PN oY B 8 R A 51 BR B R
SEeREENBENERER
B B_T-AFR_TZ
TFE+-A=+—HHAF
BEIEEREER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T _THF+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. M¥XERBEERATE

(continued) (&)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 3.4

To manage its working capital, the Group pledged certain of
its term deposits and structured deposits (collectively “Pledged
Assets”) to banks for issuance of letter of credits and bank
acceptance bills (collectively “Secured Obligations”). The
respective Pledged Assets and Secured Obligations have the
same maturity date with maturity period not more than 1 year,
and some of which meet the criteria for offsetting under the
prevailing accounting standards such that they are offset in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The table below
analyses the Pledged Assets and Secured Obligations as at
31 December 2020:

HiEcMEEHESHAR
RERHELEES  ALEBH

ETEHMERREBETR(5HE
[EEBEE]DEBFRT MU
BECABERBTALER(GR
[BEERER]) - HHACERE
EXRERFESLEGHERNEH
B ZIEHRBRABB1IFE  He
HOFEBETETERZKEE
B OBZREBEEMBEARRIERT U
e TR T _FTFE+- A
—t+—HHNEEHFEERBHRA
BERIEL DT -

Gross amount Amount offset Net amount

wmEE RS FE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET FET

Pledged Assets B EE 12,868,028 10,210,757 2,657,271
Secured Obligations BEHBES (12,988,819) (10,210,757) (2,778,062)

The Group included the net amount of Pledged Assets in “other
financial assets” under “trade and other receivables” and net
amount of Secured Obligations in “other financial liabilities” under
“trade and other payables”.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —

4. Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(@

Estimated write-down of inventories to net realisable
value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Write-down
of inventories is recorded to the extent where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be realised.

The identification of write-down requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value
of inventories and write-down of inventories in the period in
which such estimate are changed.

Estimated loss allowance of trade receivables

The Group measures loss allowance of trade receivables at an
amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss of trade receivables.

The measurement of loss allowance of trade receivables requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of trade receivables and the expected credit
loss in the period in which such estimates are changed.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note 2.7. The recoverable amounts of the relevant cash
generating units have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates
(see note 6).

In assessing the value-in-use of the goodwill, management
considers changes in economic conditions and makes
assumptions regarding estimated future cash flows and other
factors. Estimates of future cash flows are highly subjective
and judgements are based on the Group’s experience and
knowledge of operations. These estimates can be significantly
impacted by many factors including changes in business and
economic conditions, operating costs, inflation and competition.

4.

2

BUEERERBRLF

ZoREF_A=+-HULFE

CERCRRE |

1l 51 17 & AL
(=]

AEBERBFEANERM ZFAH
MRFEER R FE - HHR
?ﬁm*ﬁf‘ﬁ ERTIRERBEH IR 2 &
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ﬁﬁm@ﬂﬁa,ﬁﬁ °

CIE-3595
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

5. Property, Plant and Equipment 5. % - BRERRZE

Buildings
Leasehold  held for own
properties and use carried  Furniture and Office Motor  Assets under Right of
improvements at cost fixtures  equipment Computers vehicles  construction use Asset Total
BENE  RASSIEN
R##  KEEART  BAREE  BOERE B RE HREE  RPREE a%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fir TER FEL FEL TEL TEL FEL TEL TEL
As at 1 January 2019 R=F-hE-F-A
Cost AR 47,364 430,246 20,843 17,113 36,012 13,413 4,106 - 569,097
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (34,141) (41,814) (6,671) (11,175) (17,450) (6,221) - - (117,472
Net book amount REFE 13,223 388,432 14,172 5938 18,562 7192 4,106 - 451,625
Year ended 31 December 2019~ BZ=Z-hE
TZAZT-BIEEE
Opening net book amount FEmTE 13,223 388,432 14,172 5938 18,562 5,576 4,106 158,003 608,012
Additions E 4,027 723 15,271 1,289 9,861 459 3,846 173,025 208,501
Transfer B - - 2,326 109 2,698 - (5,133) - -
Disposals and derecognition HERKHER - - (34) (17) (965) - - (46,492) (47,508)
Depreciation & (6,514) (14,140) (7,108) (2,064) (7,118) (1,740) - (80,851) (119,633)
Exchange difference EXER (150) (2,925) 658 55 480 2 (51) 2,334 399
Closing net book amount FREEFE 10,586 372,090 25,287 5,310 23,518 4,293 2,768 206,019 649,871
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-NF
TZA=+-8
Cost KA 50,067 427,713 34,059 17,481 44,009 11,724 2,768 286,059 873,880
Accumulated depreciation 2itiE (39,481) (55,623) 8772 (12,171) (20,491) (7,431) - (80,040) (224,009)
Net book amount REFE 10,586 372,000 25,287 5,310 23,518 4293 2,768 206,019 649,871
Year ended 31 December 2020  EZR-Z-Z4
TZAZT-HIEER
Opening net book amount FRETE 10,586 372,090 25,287 5,310 23,518 4,293 2,768 206,019 649,871
Additions BE 354 129 9,458 666 6,339 1,849 6,317 124,949 150,061
Transfer a2z - - 4,733 - 438 - (5,171) - -
Disposals and derecognition HERR LHR - (854) (1,017) (20) (1,962) (349) - (12,567) (16,769)
Depreciation bk (5,104) (14,100) (7,775) (1,888) (8,121) (1,691) - (83,881) (122,560)
Exchange difference EXER 26 9,228 316 74 281 268 259 11,087 21,539
Closing net book amount FREEFE 5,862 366,493 31,002 4,142 20,493 4,370 4173 245,607 682,142
As at 31 December 2020 RZT=%F
TZA=1-8
Cost RA 50,706 437,657 44,209 16,368 44,363 13,386 4173 347,577 958,439
Accumulated depreciation Zithe (44,844) (71,164) (13,207 (12,226) (23,870) (9,016) - (101,970) (276,297)
Net book amount REFE 5,862 366,493 31,002 4,142 20,493 4,370 4173 245,607 682,142
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

. S ) L
Property, Plant and Equipment (continueq) 5. ¥ - BERZRE®
The analysis of the net book value of leased assets by class of REBEEEN P EMNAELENERR
underlying asset is as follows. All of the leased assets are carried at FESNWOT  MEHEEEHZNE
depreciated cost. AR o
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—EDEF —E-NF
t=A=+—-A +=ZA=t—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B s FER FET
Buildings held for own use BiEEAMEF (i) 366,493 372,090
Leasehold properties for own use HIEERNEEDE (ii) 245,013 204,577
Plant, machinery and equipment Y - BEREE (ifi) 594 1,442
612,100 578,109
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in profit ERERTERANEHEEENERIEE
or loss is as follows: ST
2020 2019
= i —TNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHER FET
Depreciation charge of buildings held for own use #{EERMNEFNINEER 14,100 14,140
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets: TRESENTERR
Plant, machinery and equipment M - BE KRB 125 174
Leasehold properties for own use HIEE RN EYZE 83,756 80,677
97,981 94,991
Interest on lease liabilities (note 23) HEB BN (HF23) 3,147 2,950
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #H = —

“EEFA=t+—HLFE

5. Property, Plant and Equipment (continueq)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, additions to right-of-use
assets were HK$124,949,000 (2019: HK$173,025,000). This amount
primarily related to the capitalised lease payments payable under new
tenancy agreements.

Details of the maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in note
18. Cash outflow for leases during the year ended 31 December 2020
are related to lease rentals paid which are within financing cash flows
as set out in note 28(b).

(iii)

(v)

134 vSTECS Holdings Limited

Buildings held for own use
The Group leases several buildings for a period of 50 years.
None of the leases include variable lease payments.

Leasehold properties for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other properties as
its premises and warehouses through tenancy agreements.
The leases typically run for an initial period of one to three
years. Some leases include an option to renew when all terms
are renegotiated. None of the leases includes variable lease
payments.

Other leases

The Group leases office equipment under leases expiring from
one to twelve years. Some leases include an option to renew
the lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases
includes variable lease payments.

Sub-leases as a lessor

The Group sub-leased certain leasehold properties for
2-4 years during the year ended 31 December 2020 and
classified these sub-leases as finance leases as these sub-
leases are for the whole of the remaining term of the head-
leases. The undiscounted annual lease payments ranges from
HK$11,981,000 to HK$27,654,000 each year during the sub-
lease period. The total discounted lease receivables amounted
to HK$56,921,000 as at 31 December 2020.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

[ / ~.
Intangible assets 6. BELEE
Goodwill Software Total
(GRS B st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FET
As at 1 January 2019 RZZE—-—NF—H—H
Cost and net book amount B R BR 558 319,979 - 319,979
Year ended 31 December 2019 (2T —hF
+-A=Z+—HIFE
Opening net book amount FYIREFRE 319,979 - 319,979
Exchange difference EHZERE 4,120 - 4,120
Closing net book amount FRIREFRE 324,099 - 324,099
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF+ZR=+—8H
Cost and net book amount AN K BR T FRE 324,099 - 324,099
Year ended 31 December 2020 BER-_Z-=F
+TZA=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount FYREFERE 324,099 - 324,099
Addition wnE - 4,404 4,404
Addition through acquisition of a FEBRWE-—EKREBAR
subsidiary (note 30) B (KEE30) 8,340 23,464 31,804
Amortisation ey - (1,790) (1,790)
Exchange difference ERER (96) 965 869
Closing net book amount FRIEEZEEE 332,343 27,043 359,386
As at 31 December 2020 R-E-=2F+=-H=+—H
Net book amount BREREE 332,343 27,043 359,386
The amortisation charge of software for the year is included in FREHHEBERAT ANGAERRY
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. THESZA -
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“EEFA=t+—HLFE

Intangible assets (continue)

The recoverable amount of each group of cash generating units
(“CGUs”) to which goodwill is allocated is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. Cash flow projections for the purpose of the
impairment review are based on budgets prepared on the basis of
assumptions reflective of the prevailing market conditions. Similar key
assumptions are used for value-in-use calculation for each group of
CGUs which include:

(@)  Cash flows are projected based on actual operating results and
the five-year business plan.

(b)  The anticipated annual revenue growth rates included in the
cash flow projections is 0% (2019: 3.79% to 11%).

(c)  Pre-tax discount rate as at 31 December 2020 of 8.5% (2019:
5.9% to 9.1%) was applied in determining the recoverable
amounts of the CGUs. The discount rate used reflect the risk-free
rate and the premium for specific risks relating to the business
units to which the CGUs relate.

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s
assessment of future trends in the IT industry and are based on both
external sources and internal sources and both past performance
(historical data) and its expectations for market development.

Group management believes that any reasonably possible changes
in the above key assumptions applied are not likely to cause the
recoverable amount to be materially lower than the carrying amount
of goodwill.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{E T -_TF+_-_A=+—HILFE

Investments in Subsidiaries 7. RMBARZRE
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 are RZZE-EF+_A=1+—HZEEMH
as follows: BRARIZHBOT
Place of Particulars of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and  share capital/registered interest held
Name establishment place of operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
AR, FEEEE A
£ RO B FTEEBRKSE B ERITRE FMERES HiE E
(#fzz)
VST Group Limited British Virgin Investment holding in the 4 ordinary shares of 100% -
Islands British Virgin Islands US$1 each
VST Group Limited KBERHE REER ZBEAHS JREBREEIZTZEER 100% -
Shenzhen VST Grand PRC Distribution of IT RMB100,000,000 100% -
Electronic Co., Ltd. products in the PRC
RINBEEEEFER P RABESHEMBRER  AKK100,000,0007T 100% -
NS
VST Computers (H.K.) Hong Kong Distribution of IT 2 ordinary shares - 100%
Limited products in
Hong Kong
BHEK(EB)ERRR &HE REEDHEMMEER 2REBR - 100%
62,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares
62,000,000 % 1% = HE IR T
&R
Chong Qing VST Grand PRC Distribution of IT US$20,000,000 - 100%
Technology products in the PRC
Development
Co., Ltd
ERRARARBERE F RS HERRER  20,000,0005 7T - 100%
fRA 7]
PR R AR PRC Project investment RMB30,000,000 - 100%
BT in the PRC
PR ERR e RAEEEIERRE AR#30,000,0007T - 100%
BRAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T _THF+_-_A=+—HILFE
7. Investments in Subsidiaries (continveq) 7. RHBARZRE w
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 are RZZE—ZEF+_A=1+—HZEEMH
as follows: (continued) BRARZHBWOT (&)
Place of Particulars of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and  share capital/registered interest held
Name establishment place of operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
ML FsEEE Dt
HHE BR AL ith 26 FTEEBREE M ERTRE TMERFEE HiE SEE2
(Hiat)
ECS Technology (China)  Hong Kong Investment holding, 11,500,000 ordinary shares - 100%
Limited provider of IT products
and services for IT
infrastructure in
Hong Kong
ERRBR(PEDERAE BB REBIEEREERNAL  11,500,0000% % &K - 100%
B AR E B E LR
AR RS IER
ECS Technology (HK) Hong Kong Provision of IT products 10 ordinary shares - 100%
Co., Limited and services for IT
infrastructure
in Hong Kong
BRENBRARRAT B REBRMEANMRER 10REEK - 100%
REAR AR
i
ECS Computers (HK) Hong Kong Provision of IT products 1 ordinary share - 100%
Limited and services for IT
infrastructure
in Hong Kong
EREM(BE)BRRE FE REBREEAREER 1RETER - 100%
K EMB AR R
R %5
VSTECS (Chongging) PRC Electronic settlement US$130,000,000 - 100%
Technology Co, Ltd business centre and
provider of IT products
and services of IT
infrastructure in PRC
BAERER)RHE e HEE FEEMBFTOR  130,000,0005 7T - 100%
BRAA] BRI EmREME

AR ERSHEER
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Investments in Subsidiaries continueq)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 are

as follows: (continued)

Place of

incorporation/ Principal activities and

7. REB AR 2’RE &

=

kAl

Particulars of issued

share capital/registered

F+ZA=+—BZXEW
BT (&)

Percentage of
interest held

Name establishment place of operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
AR, FE#ERB St
= B SZ 3 B FTEEERLE I BRITRAE FMERFE HE SE3
(Hz#)
ECS Technology PRC Provision of IT products HK$10,000,000 - 100%
Company Limited and services for IT
infrastructure
in the PRC
BINTERBER AR  FE PAEREBEREENREES 10,000,000/ T - 100%
NG BB AR
AR
ECS (Shanghai) PRC Provision of IT products RMB174,380,000 - 100%
Management Co., Ltd and services for IT
infrastructure
in the PRC
EE(LF)ERBERDA  FH RABRMERRSRER AKKE174,380,0007T - 100%
NEAR AR
BR75
ECS China Technology PRC Provision of IT products RMB124,151,500 - 100%
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd and services for IT
infrastructure
in the PRC
EAR(LE)ERAT  FE RPBRHEMMEER  ARE124,151,5007T - 100%
REAR AR
R 7%
ECS Technology PRC Provision of IT products RMB82,786,600 - 100%
(Guangzhou) and services for IT
Company Limited infrastructure
in the PRC
BMNERBHEAR A A # RHBERMEARBRER ARKKES2,786,6007T - 100%
NE AR AR R
R 75
ECS Chongaing PRC Provision of IT products RMB300,000,000 - 100%
Chuangying Technology and services for IT
Co., Ltd infrastructure
in the PRC
BEEREIER e R BRHEAMZER  ARK300,000,0007T - 100%
BRATA AR AR
BR 75
VES Supply Chains (Chong PRC Provision of supply chains RMB30,000,000 - 100%
Qing) Management Co., management and
Ltd warehouse transport
services in PRC
EERHAREREE R ERGEHEIRER « A R#30,000,0005 - 100%

BRAR

RRERERS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T _THF+_-_A=+—HILFE

7. Investments in Subsidiaries (continveq) 7. RMIBARZEE =
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 are RZZE—ZEF+_A=1+—HZEEMH
as follows: (continued) BRARZHBWOT (&)

Place of Particulars of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and  share capital/registered interest held
Name establishment place of operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
MR RS
HB FR AL ith 26 FTEEBRKSE ERITRAE FMERESE HiE L3
(Hizz)
R ERE B PRC Project holding RMB3,000,000 - 100%
BRAR in the PRC
R T ERE R S RPEEEEEFE AR #3,000,0007T - 100%
BRAF
VSTECS Holdings Singapore Investment holding 446,036,800 ordinary 100% -
(Singapore) Limited and distribution of IT shares
products, provision
of IT services and
enterprise systems
in Singapore
VSTECS Holdings #rhns RETI R BB « 446,036,800% & 38 A% 100% -
(Singapore) Limited DHEABRER - 2
HEMBHE R kb
VSTECS (Singapore) Singapore Provision of IT products 18,600,000 ordinary - 100%
Pte. Ltd and services for shares of S$1 each
IT infrastructure in
Singapore
VSTECS (Singapore) Fhns RETIIEIREEAEHLE  13,600,0000% FAREE 1% - 100%
Pte. Ltd o M B F R B S e Tz AR
R %5
Pacific City (Asia Pacific)  Singapore Retail of IT products, 150,000 ordinary shares - 100%
Pte Ltd IT equipment and of S$1 each
accessories in
Singapore
Pacific City (Asia Pacific)  ¥Thl3#% RFIERBEAMBRE  150,00008 & R EE 13703 - 100%
Pte Ltd i BRRHR R R TTZ BB
HZE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{E T -_TF+_-_A=+—HILFE

Investments in Subsidiaries continueq)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 are

as follows: (continued)

Place of

incorporation/ Principal activities and

7. RHB 2 A

kAl

Particulars of issued
share capital/registered

ZRE #)

TE+-A=+—B2EEW

(%)

Percentage of
interest held

Name establishment place of operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
AR, FEEZR It
= ALt B FTEEBRQSE ERITRE FMERES HiE SE
(Hz#)
Exeed Pte Ltd Singapore Distribution of IT products 5,000,000 ordinary shares - 100%
and services for of S$1 each
IT infrastructure in
Singapore
Exeed Pte Ltd N RTINS SHEFEHRE  5,000,0008 &R EET#H0 - 100%
o M B SRR R AR Wtz &k
R AR TS
VSTECS (Indo) Pte. Ltd Singapore Distribution of IT products 2,000,000 ordinary shares - 100%
in Singapore of S$1 each and 24,785
ordinary shares
of US$1.8156 each
VSTECS (Indo) Pte. Ltd  #7A0% AFTINE 2 S A AR 2,000,0008 & AR E1E 1T h0 - 100%
Edm Wt 2 ik 124,785/
SIREE1.8156F L2
Ak
ECS Infocom (Phils) Singapore Investment holding 2 ordinary shares of - 100%
Pte. Ltd in Singapore S$1 each
ECS Infocom (Phils) EMIIE RETIE R S E R I FRE B N T2 - 100%
Pte. Ltd L
PT ECS Indo Jaya Indonesia Distribution of IT products 100,000 ordinary shares - 100%
in Indonesia of US$1 each and
5,000,000 ordinary
shares of Rp13,000 each
PT ECS Indo Jaya gfe RENBHHEMEHER 100,000 8REEIETZ - 100%

EBAZ 525,000,0000% F
AR E(E13,000ENEEZ &
bty
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7. Investments in Subsidiaries continueq)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 are

as follows: (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

Principal activities and

7. RNB AR ZRE =)

— = —

T b
i)

NG Al

Particulars of issued
share capital/registered

TECRFEF A=t -HZEEM
BT (&)

Percentage of
interest held

Name establishment place of operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
MR FEEEE o
18 BR AL ith 26 FTEEBREE M ERTRE TMERFEE HiE SE2
(M)
VST ECS (Thailand) Thailand Provision of IT products 21,500,000 shares of - 100%
Co., Ltd and services for 10 Baht each
IT infrastructure
in Thailand
VST ECS (Thailand) RE PREREENEEES 21,500,000 &K EE10%R - 100%
Co., Ltd S E=ERR s €=k y i izl )
%
VSTECS (Myanmar) Myanmar Provision of marketing 300,000 shares of - 100%
Co., Ltd research and IT US$1 each
services in Myanmar
VSTECS (Myanmar) i) REEERETSH#ERT 300,000 EREEIETZ - 100%
Co., Ltd KB AR RS 17
VSTECS (Cambodia) Cambodia Import and export of IT KHR20,000,000 - 100%
Co., Ltd. products in Cambodia
VSTECS (Cambodia) SRfZE RRIBEEEMRHEE 20,000,000k H % i @ - 100%
Co., Ltd. i A
IREAZE2HERK China Provision of cloud services RMB3,000,000 - 60%
BRAF] in the PRC
IRERE R SRR # A BIR AR AR#3,000,0007T - 60%
BT
Note: B

All subsidiaries are limited liability companies except for those established in
the PRC, which are wholly-owned foreign enterprises.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE -

. . Qege — N2
Interests in Associates 8. REtE RTINS
2020 2019
—ZT-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Unlisted ¥
Share of net assets DIFEE 637,390 649,109
Loan to an associate BPBERTMER 3,493 3,503
640,883 652,612
Listed outside Hong Kong REBUIME T
Share of net assets DIFEE 312,524 287,792
953,407 940,404
Market value of listed shares G TE 298,595 210,594
The loan to an associate is denominated in US$ and is unsecured, BYBERARMERUNETE I
interest-free and not expected to be recovered within one year. AEEE 2EKBHIAER—FA
I
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE —

8. Interests in Associates (continued)

“EEFA=t+—HLFE

8. REE R
F

AR =)

Details of the associates as at 31 December 2020 are as follows: RZZEZF “A=+t—B8zHERN
ARBET -
Country of
incorporation/ Particulars of issued  Equity interest held by the
Name establishment Principal activities shares Group
H8 HMRL RIER FTEEK ERITROFE TEBEFEZRE
2020 2019
—EB-EF —E-HE
VSTECS Phils. Inc. Philippines Distribution of IT 3,097,055 49.99% 49.99%
products ordinary shares of
Peso 100 each
VSTECS Phils. Inc. JEREE DIEEMEHRER 38,097,055 BRMEE 49.99% 49.99%
100K E 2 L@k
VSTECS Berhad Malaysia Provision of 180,000,000 42.76% 42.76%
information ordinary shares of
technology and RMO0.5 each
services for IT
infrastructure
in Malaysia
VSTECS Berhad SR A5 5 R FE T & S RHE ££180,000,000% & AR EI (& 42.76% 42.76%
EREEMMER  052FH2EAER
PR
vServePlus Co., Ltd. Thailand IT services 196,000 shares of 49% 49%
100 Baht each
vServePlus Co., Ltd. B BB RS 196,000/ & X E {100 49% 49%
Tk B
APAL Holdings Limited ~ Cayman Islands Aviation leasing 1,056,000,000 28.41% 28.41%
ordinary shares of
US$0.1 each
APALIEIR BRI REHS REE 1,056,000,000/% & % 28.41% 28.41%
[EORE a1
VSTAM Technology PRC Investment RMB500,000,000 45% 45%
Development Limited management
services in the PRC
BEREANRER I KPP BERERE AR #500,000,0007T 45% 45%
BRAF ERRH
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

. . Qege — a2 n
Interests in Associates ontinueq 8. REE&ERNTMER =)
None of the associates were considered individually material to the WMaEsE AR ERNmE R ABEHAE
Group. The aggregate carrying amount of associates in the consolidated BEKX ZEFEVBRERP A
financial statements is disclosed above. Aggregate financial information ERNA BREEHSBERLEXER - K
(the Group’s share) of these associates is as follows: EEHMZERE DR AT HER
W
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Profit from continuing operations FRB A A 23,685 50,106
Other comprehensive income HE2mEmKRA 4,261 545
Total comprehensive income ZHEBALTE 27,946 50,651
. . A s A a2
Interest in a Joint Venture 9. REELENER
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAET
Share of net assets PMEFEE 29,250 30,396
Details of the joint venture as at 31 December 2020 are as follows: RZEZEF+A=+—HzE6%1®
EHIBHT

Particulars of

Country of registered and Equity interest
Name establishment  Principal activities paid-in capital held by the Group
L BAAETE TEXRK AR EHERFE rEEFZRE
2020 2019
—g-%F —T-hE
Bozhou Botong Information  PRC Research and development, RMB155,000,000 38.03% 38.03%
Technology Co., Ltd production and sale of

smartphones and computer
peripheral product
M IERESRR I E - FERHESETHES ARYK155000,000C  38.03% 38.03%
BRAT] MEZER
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9. Interest in a Joint Venture (continueq) 9.

Bozhou Botong Information Technology Co., Ltd is the only joint
venture in which the Group participates and it is not considered
material to the Group. Financial information (the Group’s share) of

REETLENER »

EMTEREEMRBERATNAAEHE
SDEEBzE——HEELE  LTHK
BRAUREEBEKN - AEENhZA

this joint venture is as follows: EhEZHBERDT ¢
2020 2019
—ERCEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
Loss from continuing operations SIEL B E1E (2,866) (5,195)
Other comprehensive income E2ERA 1,720 (589)
Total comprehensive income ZEA LT (1,146) (6,784)

. =+
10. Trade and Other Receivables 10.EZ R HEMEWRIE

2020 2019
—EIEF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHETT
Trade receivables, net B 5 W IE E5E 13,207,407 12,718,655
Other receivables and prepayments oA FEWCRIE K TS BOR 2,297,744 1,830,993
Other financial assets (note 3.4) Hih & E(A723.4) 2,657,271 -
Deferred expenses EEFM 3,417 5,118
18,165,839 14,554,766
Less: Non-current deferred expenses WA IERERIRAE R ST (346) (886)
18,165,493 14,553,880
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10. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

The Group grants credit periods to third party customers ranging

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E LT F+-_A=+—HILFE

from 7 to 150 days, which may be extended for selected customers 1500  MEEXR

depending on their trade volume and settlement history with the

10.ESZREMEWFIE @)

AEBRTE=Z TP Z2EEHNT7

FZEEHARTF

BERAEFBZXHE RN RLEHIT

Group. The ageing analysis of net trade receivables by invoice date E - ZBHEWRAEBEFEIREE[EHE S
is as follows: ZEEB O -
2020 2019
—EIERF —E-hEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTHER FET
0 — 30 days 0&30H 7,246,323 6,988,715
31 - 60 days 31260H 2,674,959 3,378,225
61 — 90 days 61290H 872,392 856,279
Over 90 days B0 H 2,413,733 1,495,436
13,207,407 12,718,655
The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables were denominated B hHEMEWRIBEREBENA TNIEE
in the following currencies: ETE
2020 2019
—EIEF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
HK$ BT 116,524 106,660
RMB AR 14,123,146 10,414,090
USS$ ETT 1,173,501 1,175,125
S$ AN IT 458,132 621,845
THB ek 1,607,515 1,339,274
RP ER 686,675 896,886
18,165,493 14,553,880
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE —

“EEFA=t+—HLFE

10. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

11.

148 VSTECS Holdings Limited

As at 31 December 2020, other receivables and prepayments
include investments in unlisted securities of HK$398,010,000 (2019:
HK$306,933,000) and investments in listed securities of HK$90, 144,000
(2019: HK$78,087,000), both of which are measured at fair value
(see note 3.3). Net fair value gain on these securities amounting to
HK$91,500,000 and HK$12,057,000 (2019: HK$26,636,000 and
HK$20,476,000) is recognised in profit or loss during the year ended
31 December 2020.

Except for the abovementioned listed and unlisted securities and lease
receivables (note 5(iv)) of HK$56,921,000 included in other receivables
and prepayments, the trade and other receivables are expected to be

10.EZRHEMWERE

K IH ()

RZZEZZEF+ZA=+—H ' H
tEKZRERESRERLEIE LT
a’i%&ﬁsgsomooo%m(*f—
% 306,933,000 L) K W
a*%&ﬁ%umoooﬁé;ﬂ*f—h
4 :78,087,0008 L) WKk AFE
E(RARWFESS) HBHE_ZT_ZTF
T AZT " BLEEFEE %ZEEFF
B A E W F B A91,500,0008
JL & 12,057,000 (=& — N &F :
26,636,000 #& Tt & 20,476,000 &
TL) c WREZRAER -

Bt FNIELETESFURGFAEM
JE S 3R I8 I JE 5 FRIB A Y JE IR A 1%fk
(B M 3E5(iv)) 56,921,000 7T 40 -

recovered or recognised as expense within one year. SREMERFETERHIEN —F I*J
el sk R AR -
. A
Inventories 11. 78
2020 2019
—E-EF —h&E
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHBT
Inventories on hand held for re-sale BEREBEEFHEFEE 4,961,888 5,463,584
Inventories-in-transit EEREFE 539,940 522,169
5,501,828 5,985,753

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense
is shown in note 22.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

12. Cash and Cash Equivalents 12EERAESEEY
2020 2019
—EBEF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Cash at bank and in hand RITREFRS 3,082,563 2,183,589
Short-term bank deposits REHERIRITIE R 476,629 144,113
Cash and cash equivalents HERIREEEY 3,559,192 2,327,702
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents were denominated RekReFEVEREEENTIEYE
in the following currencies: ETE -
2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
HKS BT 167,263 123,206
RMB (Note) N =9, 2,392,719 1,805,853
uss$ ETT 550,498 206,960
S$ N T 196,031 120,537
THB Rk 56,026 15,221
RP EERE 196,655 55,925
3,559,192 2,327,702
Note: Wizt -
The Group’s bank balances and deposits denominated in RMB AEBUARBFECRITERREFERTF
are deposited with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these MRAPEZIRIT - ABRZEUARBFEZ
RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies and the ERRIINERGESEN B AEZESTRBK
remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to prevailing rules 1T B 7B 2 BRAT SNEE B AR Bl R AR 1] -

and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
government of the PRC.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T _THF+_-_A=+—HILFE

13. Share Capital 13. A&
2020 2019
—EC-RF —TNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Authorised: SETE ¢
2,000,000,000 (2019: 2,000,000,000) 2,000,000,0008% (= Z —h 4 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 2,000,000,000/% ) = h% E &
018 T2 EBRK 200,000 200,000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: EETRHRLEEK
2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-NE
Number of Number of
issued ordinary issued ordinary
shares of shares of
HK$0.1 each Par value HK$0.1 each Par value
BREEIEBTZ FREEIBTZ
BRTEBARYA A BETLEREE HfAE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
At 1 January ®n—H—H 1,453,341,998 145,334 1,457,863,998 145,786
Share options exercised BT 2 B (FT i (a)
(Note (a)) 2,880,000 288 1,440,000 144
Repurchase of own shares BB & 315 (Matb)
(Note (b)) (1,770,000) (177) (5,962,000) (596)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8 1,454,451,998 145,445 1,453,341,998 145,334
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

13. Share Capital continvea)

Notes:

(@

Shares issued under share option scheme

During the year ended 31 December 2020, options were exercised
to subscribe for 2,880,000 ordinary shares in the Company at a
consideration of HK$6,080,000 of which HK$288,000 was credited to
share capital and HK$8,768,000 (including HK$2,976,000 transferred
from the capital reserve to the share premium account in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 2.17(d)) were credited to the
share premium account.

13. RA& (2

Hiat

RIRE R B BITRG
RBE_ZT_ZTZF+-_A=+—8H
EFEE BEREETEARRE
6,080,000 JL R B A~ A 7] 2,880,000
B E@mAE - E A 288,0008 Lt AR
K - 8,768,000/ 5T A 5F AR i (B
iR - B E3E2,976,000/8 5T O 1% BB
H2AT(A)TE Z ST BRI E NGB
HREEROEER -

(a)

Number of

Month of Shares issued ordinary shares Credited to Share Capital
under share option scheme issued  Consideration share capital premium reserve
REBRESARTRGZAR BT EERYA RE FARA R EE BEXRE

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT BT
June 2020 ZEZTFRA 240,000 487,000 24,000 711,000 248,000
November 2020 ZZ-ZE+-R 480,000 1,069,000 48,000 1,517,000 496,000
December 2020 ZZZT5+ZR 2,160,000 4,524,000 216,000 6,540,000 2,232,000
Total Ek 2,880,000 6,080,000 288,000 8,768,000 2,976,000

During the year ended 31 December 2019, options were exercised
to subscribe for 1,440,000 ordinary shares in the Company at a
consideration of HK$3,206,000 of which HK$144,000 was credited to
share capital and HK$4,750,000 (including HK$1,688,000 transferred
from the capital reserve to the share premium account in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 2.17(d)) were credited to the
share premium account.

REBEE-_Z—-—hhE+_A=+—HBILFE -
PR EITE AL R E 3,206,000 LR
A E]1,440,0000% @A - EF 144,000
BILET AR - ™4,750,0005% 7t Bl 5T A B%
MRER 9+ EI1E1,688,0008 LB KR
MIEE2. 17 (d) Pl 2 S5t ERR I E AR 1B 15 5%

=RMEER -

Number of
Month of Shares issued ordinary shares Credited to Share Capital
under share option scheme issued  Consideration share capital premium reserve
REBRESVBRTRGZAR RO EERYA RE FARA R R E EXEE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
January 2019 —T-NE-A 1,440,000 3,206,000 144,000 4,750,000 1,688,000
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13. Share Capital continvea)

Notes: (continued)

(0)

152 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Repurchase of own shares

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company repurchased

its own shares on the Stock Exchange as follows:

13. A ()
Biat c (4)
(b) BEBEARHHD

REBEE-_T-_FTFF+_A=+—8H1L
FE  ARARBRABEELRSR

mwT
Number of

ordinary Highest Lowest Aggregate

shares price paid price paid purchase

Month of repurchase repurchased per share per share price paid

BEZ A5 BO-EZERYE SNERESER ENEREEER EBENEBEER

HKS HKS HKS

BT BT BT

March 2020 —E-FEF=H 1,488,000 3.30 3.30 4,910,000

April 2020 —E-TFWMA 282,000 3.52 3.52 993,000

1,770,000 5,908,000
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company repurchased REBEE-_T-—NF+-_A=+—8H1L
its own shares on the Stock Exchange as follows: FE  ARARBRABEELRSR

(LR UNNE
Number of

ordinary Highest Lowest Aggregate

shares price paid price paid purchase

Month of repurchase repurchased per share per share price paid

BEZ A5 BO-EZERYE SNERBESER ENEREEER EBENEBEER

HKS HKS HKS

BT BT BT

January 2019 —E-NE—HA 5,692,000 3.63 3.18 20,463,000
The repurchased shares during the years ended 31 December 2020 and REBEE_ZE-_ZEFR_ZE—NAF+=
2019 were cancelled and accordingly the issued share capital of the A=Z+—BIFEZEHBLORHE R
Company was reduced by the nominal value of these shares. o A ARAE 2B BITRAE MK
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

13. Share Capital continued) 13. A #)

Notes: (continued) Biat - (%)
()  Deferred shares (c) EELERH
The Company acquired, through trusts setup specifically for purpose of REBEE=-ZT =% E Jr =

A=+
employment compensation, a total of 11,372,000 ordinary shares of the 1F & F $ NABBE 'J V=l
Company during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: 4,868,000) %ﬁ 1 H 25t 8

from the open market for a total cash consideration of approximately

HK$44,212,000 (2019: HK$18,966,000). These shares would be used 4,868, ooon ) ZIN/N fﬁéﬁ
primarily for providing employment/executive compensation of the Group. BB A4L4,212, OOO /% T(ZF—
The costs of acquisition of shares were recognised in the “Deferred JUF : 18,966,000/ 7T ) ° % SR 15

reserve” in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, 5,740,000 deferred shares
with a total value of approximately HK$16,072,000 were vested and
transferred to all eligible employees. There were no vesting nor transfer
in 2019.

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the end of the
reporting period

TERARNREAEB ZEE TR

18 - WD 2 AR &
LIE 1 I TERR -

mE[E

AERED

RBE-F-_FE+-A=+—A

LEEFE

5,740,000 BT 1D -
THEEEWKEES -
MERE S EE

4 A 4916,072,00078 T 2

EREILEE
\_%ﬁ NE

RBERARRINARRITE 2 B AE

F 1

No. of options
outstanding at
31 December

No. of options
outstanding at
31 December

2020 2019
N-BZZHF Hn-Z— n¢
Exercise price ~+=A=+—-H +=BA=+-
Exercise period TES TEE RITEIE R RE *ﬂﬁﬂﬁﬂﬂﬁ
17 February 2013 to - -At+tHEZZT=— HK$2.227 720,000 1,920,000
16 February 2021 FZA+~H

23 March 2013 to —E-=F=ZAZ+=HEZZEC HK$2.028 - 1,680,000
22 March 2021 —f=HA=+=H

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share of FHERER THEAZMNRBEARAA

the Company. Further details of these options are set out in note 14 to
the financial statements.
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14. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments

(@

154 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Share option scheme of the Company

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 17 April
2002 has expired. The Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”) on 23 June 2015 whereby the
Directors of the Company are authorised, at their discretion,
to invite employees (including both full time and part time
employees, and Executive Directors), Non-executive Directors,
suppliers, customers and other corporations or individuals that
provide support to the Group (as defined in the new share
option scheme) to take up options to subscribe for shares in the
Company. The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the new share option scheme may
not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company.
The subscription price is determined by the Company’s Board
of Directors and will not be less than the higher of (i) the nominal
value of the Company’s ordinary shares; (i) the closing price of
the Company’s ordinary shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer; and
(iii) the average closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of offer. The vesting period of the options from the date of
grant is determined by the Directors and the options are then
exercisable within a period of ten years including the vesting
period, if any. Each share option gives the holders the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE -

14. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments 14, L}\ Bt zERE
(continued) zT\A IE (&)
(@ Share option scheme of the Company (continuea) (a) XATBREE (&
No share options were granted under the New Scheme during REE T NhER-_T-_ZTF
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020. +_A=+t—"HILHFE  HBER

BB LB R -

(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows, (i) LNTABEH ZIERRIEHE -
whereby all options are settled by physical delivery of B REER_ZET_FTF+
shares for the year ended 31 December 2020: —“A=+—HIEEE ' BT

EEREANEY ARG
&E
Outstanding Outstanding  Exercisable
as at Exercised as at asat Contractual Remaining
1 January during 31 December 31 December Exercise Vesting termof  contractual
2020 the year 2020 2020 price conditions options life
(HKS)
H-B-%F it -t
-p-8 tZB=t-  tIBR=t- BRE bl
HAGE  REAGE  BERGE  ATFAR ke BRAN SHEH SHER
Date of grant FHAH (Bm)
17 February 2011 “5——FZBttH 1,920,000 (1,200,000) 720,000 720,000 2227 2 years from 10years 0.4 years
date of grant
ARLA%E 105 0145
iof
23 March 2011 e B 1,680,000 (1,680,000) - - 2028 2 years from 10years (.23 years
date of grant
ARLA%E 105 0.23%
i

3,600,000 (2,880,000) 720,000 720,000

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise —E_EERNETHEIER
for share options exercised during 2020 was HK$6.22. RERITEE BB Z A F R

B56.22/87T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #H = —

14. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments

(continued)

“EEFA=t+—HLFE

(@) Share option scheme of the Company (continued)

FRIE ()

WUBRD XA zEEEE

(a) ANBBIRESSE ()

(i)  The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows, (i) LWTABRE ZIEREIEE &
whereby all options are settled by physical delivery of It REE-_ZT—hh&+-A
shares for the year ended 31 December 2019: =t+—HIFE  EBRKRE

HRBY RN BRIDEES
QOutstanding Qutstanding Exercisable
asat Exercised asat asat Contractual Remaining
1 January during 31 December 31 December Exercise Vesting term of contractual
2019 the year 2019 2019 price conditions options life
(HKS)
RZE-1% RZE-NF  RIB-0F
-f-H TIA=T-  tZA=1- flE Mg
HAMTE  RERAE  BEAGE  BITOE 1B BEGI alEs AHED
Date of grant RiEAH (#7)
17 February 2011 “F——E-BttA 3,360,000 (1,440,000) 1,920,000 1,920,000 2221 2 years from 10 years 1.14 years
date of grant
BELAKE 105 1148
ioF
23 March 2011 “3-——EZf-1=H 1,680,000 - 1,680,000 1,680,000 2028 2 years from 10 years 1.23 years
date of grant
BELARE 105 1285
HoF
5,040,000 (1,440,000) 3,600,000 3,600,000
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise TE-NFRETEZER

for share options exercised during 2019 was HK$3.7.

15. Reserves of the Company

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each

component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in

the Company’s individual components of equity between the beginning

and the end of the current and prior years are set out below:
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7 3R 2R B E (&)

15. Reserves of the Company (continveq)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

15. &R N al @ e

Capital
Share  redemption Capital Deferred Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
ROEE EXBEFEE ERfiE EERE RitER @
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TEx TEx TEx TEx TEx S
(Note) (Note) (Note) (Note)
() () (Hst) (Hfst)
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—A—-HZ
&4 869,075 7.934 6,207 (67.908)  (305406) 509,902
Loss and total comprehensive FREEREZARALE
income for the year - - - - (922) (922)
Dividend paid ENRE - - - - (220,908) (220,908)
Deferred share purchased EREEERN - - - (14,100) - (14,100)
Share options exercised BT RE 4,750 - (1,688) - - 3,062
Repurchase of own shares BEAFRNH
— Premium paid -BfEE - - - - (19,867) (19,867)
- Transfer between reserves 1 nEE - 596 - - (596) -
Balance as at 31 December 2019 R-Z—-AFF+-A=+
a=A 873,825 8,530 4,519 (82,008) (547,699) 257,167
Balance at 1 January 2020 RZZE-TF-F—-HYZ
e 873,825 8,530 4,519 (82,008) (547,699) 257,167
Profit and total comprehensive FNEFREZERALE
income for the year - - - - 241,774 241,774
Dividend paid BARE - - - - (242,413)  (242,413)
Deferred share purchased BEERLTRS - - - (21,848) - (21,848)
Share options exercised BEIT{FERE 8,768 - (2,976) - - 5,792
Repurchase of own shares BEAG KRG
- Premium paid -BEE - - - - (5,726) (5,726)
- Transfer between reserves —FEEER - 177 - - (17 -
Balance as at 31 December 2020  WZZ-ZFEF+-F=+
—Bz#H 882,593 8,707 1,543 (103,856) (554,241) 234,746
Note: et -
See notes to the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the nature FHRFEECHEEREN  BEKEEZEZY
and purpose of reserves. HwE MR -
mtExERERa® —T-T54% 157
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE —

“EEFA=t+—HLFE

16. Trade and Other Payables and Contract Liabilites 16. 2 Z R Htt B R E R
BHNEE
2020 2019
—®-®&  —ThF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH FBT
Trade payables B S RENKIEA 10,795,001 9,626,830
Other payables and accruals E e 3RIE SR FE T SRIE 1,126,687 719,393
Other financial liabilities (note 3.4) Hiv B &M 23.4) 2,778,062 -
14,699,750 10,346,223
2020 2019
—_ 7 —_ ﬂE = —j‘Lf‘E
HK$ 000 HK$’000
FHExT T
Contract liabilities EHEE 711,943 545,893
Less: non-current portion W 0 FEBNERER S (481) (1,193)
711,462 544,700

(@)  The Group’s suppliers grant credit periods ranging from 30 to

90 days to the Group. The ageing analysis of trade payables

(a) AEBZHERRASEEREZ
1:??3)%” F30E90H - BEHEN

by invoice date is as follows: RBEREZHHE > ZERERDM
QDT :

2020 2019
—ECEF —ZE-hEF
HK$ 000 HK$’'000
FER FET
0 — 60 days 0&60H 10,479,822 9,508,708
Over 60 days HBiE60H 315,179 118,122
10,795,001 9,626,330

(o) The carrying amounts of trade and other payables were by BEZREMEMNFBERBEILT

denominated in the following currencies: HIEHETE

2020 2019
—EIERF E—NF
HK$ 000 HK$’000
FERT FAET
HK$ BT 26,517 15,399
RMB AR 10,357,443 6,087,527
US$ T 2,870,748 2,881,792
S$ AN T 335,691 321,467
THB ok 440,619 420,006
RP EfEE 668,732 620,032
14,699,750 10,346,223
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —

16. Trade and Other Payables and Contract Liabilities

(continued)

(©)

Included in other payables and accruals is an entrusted loan from
an associate of HK$252,280,000 (2019: HK$237,746,000). The
loan from an associate is denominated in RMB and is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable within one year.

Contract liabilities mainly represent prepayments received from
customers. Balance of HK$545,893,000 as at 1 January 2020
(2019: HK$6,400,000) was fully recognised as revenue during
the year when the customers have taken possession of and
accepted the products.

Contract liabilities of HK$711,943,000 (2019: HK$545,893,000)
were recognised as at 31 December 2020 mainly as a result of
the prepayment received from customers during the year ended
31 December 2020 in advance of satisfaction of performance
obligation, and HK$711,462,000 (2019: HK$544,700,000) are
expected to be fully recognised as revenue within one year.

16.E 5

A
=]

(c)

BUEERERBRLF

=3

~

ZoREF_A=+-HULFE

K H it FE Y 7R K
NEE

HEMENRBREFREBCRE
—EBERARBIZETER
252,280,000 (= — L F :
237,746,000 70) c %2E M —MH
ENARMCERAARE S
B REER 2EEKR—FR

oy
/mla °

FEAREBRFKEMAE
cHR-ZTE-_THF— A —
B v%%;ﬁ%545 893,000/ (==
— L4 : 6,400,000 T)ERNE
FHBIENERZFRBHE

=
s
i

RZEZEF+ZRA=+—8 "
ERREHNAFET711,943,000%
JT(=ZF— L% : 545,893,000/8
L) TEZHERBE_Z=_ZF 1+
AT RALEFEERBTEY
EAMEBR P WEIIBHNRIE -
WIEET711,462,0008 (=& —
FLEF 544,700,000 7T ) R —
FREHER R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE —

17. Deferred Taxation

“EEFA=t+—HLFE

17. RERIE

The movement in net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows: EEBBBEE,/ (BE)FEZED
UM
2020 2019
—_ 7 — ﬂE —j‘Lf‘E
HK$ 000 HK$’000
FET FHET
At 1 January n—HA—H 103,888 77,069
Credited to the consolidated statement st AGEERE(ME24)
of profit or loss (Note 24) 24,349 06,494
Addition through acquisition of a subsidiary FHRWEE - B A RRE (2,630) -
Exchange difference EH =% 8,675 325
At 31 December Rt+—_A=1+—H 134,282 103,888
Movements of the gross deferred tax assets and liabilities during the REBEEENBBERABRNFRNZE S
year are as follows: W
2020 2019
—EBCEF —E-NF
Deferred tax assets — Inventories and trade EEREBEE-GFERES5E HK$’000 HK$'000
receivables provisions eSSt FHET FET
At 1 January n—A—H 123,078 107,629
Credited to the consolidated statement of profit st ALREEERE
or loss 34,681 15,418
Exchange difference b 3, =58 16,768 31
At 31 December R+-—A=+—~H 174,527 123,078
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Deferred tax liabilities — Accelerated tax EEREBEEE-MEHRBINE HK$’000 HK$'000
depreciation and others REAM FHET FHET
At 1 January n—A— (19,190) (30,560)
(Debited)/credited to the consolidated statement (1 A\)/ut)\ = A8 R
of profit or loss (10,332) 11,076
Addition through acquisition of a subsidiary BBEWE—ENBERARAE (2,630) -
Exchange difference BN =% (8,093) 294
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H (40,245) (19,190)
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18. Lease liabilities

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

At 31 December 2020, the lease liabilities were repayable as follows:

18.FHE&AE

R—_E-_ZEF+-H1

=+—H #H&8
BRENTIZHAEER

an
= -

2020 2019

—EEF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Within 1 year —FR 95,799 90,131
After 1 year but within 2 years BB —FELRRF 64,546 51,983
After 2 years but within 5 years HBERFEIARARTF 66,738 73,939
More than 5 years ZRAF 34,656 42150
165,940 168,072

261,739 258,203

The carrying amounts of lease liabilities were denominated in the following

currencies:

HEEBEZREHLEATIEBE :

2020 2019

—E-EF —E—NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHERT FAT

HK$ BT - 2,112
RMB AR 154,013 160,393
S$ oo 19,344 21,940
THB B3/ 87,823 73,016
RP EfeE 559 742
261,739 258,203

BUEERERBRLF
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

19. Borrowings

19. 18 &

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B aE FERT FAT
Non-current FERE
Unsecured bank borrowings EINIRIRITEE (a) - 1,487,827
- 1,487,827
Current B
Unsecured bank borrowings EIRIRITEE (a) 6,733,250 6,602,279
Secured mortgage loan BEMRBER (o) 17,562 27,006
6,750,812 6,529,285
Total borrowings BEE () 6,750,812 8,017,112
Notes: HaE -
(@)  Unsecured bank borrowings (a) EmEFRITEE

R—ZZE_TEF+_A=+—H"
930,999,000% (=T — N F -

As at 31 December 2020, unsecured loans of HK$930,999,000 (2019:

HK$934,981,000) and HK$552,901,000 (2019: HK$552,846,000) were

repayable on 29 July 2021 and 9 September 2021 respectively. The 934,981,000 7T ) % 552,901,000%

loans were unsecured and bore interest at rates as disclosed in section T(ZZF— % 552,846,000/ 7T )

(e) below. ZEERBERESINR-_ZZ—F+t
A-t+hBR-_ZE-_—FAAILBE
B REERBEEF RIZ T (J)E
WEZFEGTE o

(o)  Secured mortgage loan (b) AERRBER
The loan is secured by buildings with net book value of HK$178,458,000 RZEZEF+ZA=+—8 " BEX
as at 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$182,700,000). The loan contains a NEE®EFEA178,458,0008 t( =
repayment on demand clause and the portion of the loan to be repaid =T — L% 182,700,000 7t ) 2 18

after one year of HK$8,118,000 (2019: HK$17,562,000) is classified FEER  ZEERHEBEEZRKE
as current. BBRE MBR—FREBZEX

58,118,000 (=T — h F :
17,562,000 T) H B AEVER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—FT—-F

19. Borrowings (continuea)

Notes: (continued)

(©

The Group’s unsecured bank borrowings and secured mortgage loan
were repayable as follows:

19. 6 & (#)

Hiax : (&)

F+-A=+—HILFE

(c) AEBEZEBEMRITEERAEMEZ
BEFRAR T HEER

2020 2019
—E-BHE —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Within 1 year or on demand —FRHREKR 6,750,812 6,529,285
Between 1 and 2 years —E_F - 1,487,827
6,750,812 8,017,112
The effective interest rates were as follows: (d) EBREMEMOT :
2020 2019
—EC-EE —E—hNFE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTEx FHBT

Unsecured bank borrowings EIKIPIRITEE
Secured mortgage loan BEFIRBER

0.61%-8.01% 1.4

0.85%-3.17%

0%-10.45%

1.73%-3.6%

The carrying amounts of unsecured bank borrowings and secured
mortgage loan were denominated in the following currencies:

() MEMRTEEREFERERBERZ
FREESRATIEREE :

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHExT F#T

HK$ BT 167,562 177,006
RMB AR 3,275,854 3,789,749
uss$ e 3,103,201 3,258,212
S$ rnsgoc - 165,113
THB ek 204,195 383,113
RP & - 243,919
6,750,812 8,017,112
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T _THF+_-_A=+—HILFE

20. Revenue and Segment Information

Segment information has been prepared in a manner consistent
with the information used by the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments. The Group’s most senior
executive management has been identified as the Board. In this
regard, the Group’s senior executive management monitors the results

attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses

incurred by those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is segment results,
including items specifically attributed to individual segments, such as
directors’ and auditors’ remuneration and other administration costs

within the segment.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group changed the
segment reporting to the executive directors which resulted in a
change to the composition of its reportable segments. Comparative
figures for the operating segment information disclosed in this note

have been restated to conform to current period’s presentation.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance for

the year is set out below.
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(@

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

20. Revenue and Segment Information (continueq) 20. Wz R 7 HE Fw)
Business segments (a) EF D&
The business segments of the Group are as follows: AREBZEBH>IBWOT -
Segments Principal activities

2 &P

EREK

Consumer electronics

Enterprise systems

ERER

Cloud computing

EiE

Provision of finished IT products (including but not limited to computer, mobile phone,
drone, smart sports watch, 3D printer, game console, etc.).

RHEAMEERBR(PEBEENRNEN - FH  BmARK  ZeLEZH)F&  3DITH
H o BRIEE) -

Provision of enterprise system tools (middleware, operating systems, Unix/NT servers,
databases and storage) for IT infrastructure and IT infrastructure design and
implementation, training, maintenance and support services.

REANEARRERR Gz PERSGTAE(REM - BIERLS - UniNTIRISZ: - BUR
[ R (kA7 ) B A A RHR AR R pE R AT RN T 1B - IS RIERT o

Provision of cloud computing solutions and services.

REEHERRDRNRS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

20. Revenue and Segment Information (ontinuea)

(@) Business segments (continued)

The restated segment results for the year ended 31 December

2020 are as follows:

200 RBZRDHER )

(a) ¥KoE®)

HEzE-_Z-_ZTF+=-A=+—8H
HFEEBN 2O HELEWT ¢

Consumer Enterprise Cloud

electronics systems computing Total

HEET TERS e Fak]

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000

TR TR TR TR

Total segment revenue o (gt at 27,364,638 40,914,823 1,682,420 69,961,881
Segment results DEVEE 450,597 898,147 71,610 1,420,354
Finance costs HEER (193,908)
1,226,446

Share of associates’ profits AMEBER 23,685
Share of a joint venture's loss ~ AMEAEEEE (2,866)
Profit before taxation BR A A8 1,247,265
Taxation HE (179,685)
Profit for the year FRHEH 1,067,580
Reportable segment assets ~ AT$REHHIE 7,634,400 11,505,781 486,770 19,626,951
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

200 RBZRDHER )

(@) Business segments (continued) (a) ¥BoE )

BE-_ZT-HAFt+-_A=+—H
LFEDEIZDMBERNT

20. Revenue and Segment Information (ontinuea)

The restated segment results for the year ended 31 December
2019 are as follows:

Consumer Enterprise Cloud
electronics systems computing Total
HEET BERR EHE k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THL THEL THL THL
Total segment revenue SRS eE 29,424,605 35,585,029 1,200,287 66,209,921
Segment results DEEE 419,831 794,025 46,356 1,260,212
Finance costs BHER (295,616)
964,596
Share of associates’ profits DIEEE DN ERR 50,106
Share of a joint venture’s loss ~ DMEAEEER (5,195)
Profit before taxation BRELAT &R 1,009,507
Taxation HIE (199,559)
Profit for the year FREF 809,948
Reportable segment assets RENPEE 9,245,220 10,121,288 360,468 19,726,976

Note: et -

AEBEEBEE T - NFR_IZZZTF
T AT BLEFENAMAERER
BEBVBRMELERFI5WER - I
FERBEEREE -

All of the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
2020 are recognised in accordance with HKFRS 15 and are substantially
from sale of goods.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #H = —

20. Revenue and Segment Information (ontinuea)

“EEFA=t+—HLFE

200 RBZRDHER )

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or loss (b) AIRELBERREEN
ML,
and assets iR
Profit i )
Reconciliation of segment profit to the profit for the year in the HROHBENEEEERERME
consolidated statement of profit or loss is not presented as the A2 FEWmAER - W2
segment profit is the same as the profit for the year presented DEBENEGEERRERAZERA
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. A AR o
Assets BE
2020 2019
B —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FAET
Reportable segment assets Al RE D EEE 19,626,951 19,726,976
Intangible assets | EE 359,386 324,099
Interests in associates 73”\35»% ENAIRER 953,407 940,404
Interest in a joint venture REEDLENER 29,250 30,396
Deferred tax assets REBIREE 174,527 123,078
Other receivables and prepayments E b FEUGRIA KR TR 5RIE 4,722,858 1,463,414
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEED 3,559,192 2,327,702
Consolidated total assets REBEE 29,425,571 24,936,069
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20. Revenue and Segment Information (ontinuea)

(©)

Geographical information

The Group’s three business segments operate principally in

North Asia and South East Asia.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

200 RBZRDHER )

(c) HEE LR

AEB=ZEXBrBEITERID

2020 2019
—EC-RE ZT-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHT

Revenue Wz
North Asia ibep 55,354,208 52,050,128
South East Asia HEan 14,607,673 14,159,793
Total segment revenue D E R KRR 69,961,881 66,209,921

Revenue is allocated based on the region in which the customer

WaHREEPMAEMER DA -

is located.

2020 2019
—ECoBE ZT-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET

Assets BE
North Asia it 16,189,631 15,777,579
South East Asia REE 3,437,320 3,949,397
Reportable segment assets AImEDHEE 19,626,951 19,726,976

Reportable segment assets are allocated based on where the

assets are located.

BUEERERBRLF

ARENREERBEEMELDR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE —

21. Other Gains, Net

“EEFA=t+—HLFE

21. H g A F 5

2020 2019
—E-EF —h&F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Interest income FEWA 13,916 39,992
(Loss)/Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEYWE  BENMKREZ
equipment (E18) e (15) 334
Government grant RATHEB) 17,753 -
Other Hth 4,371 (4,517)
36,025 35,809
22. Operating Profit 22, #8& 5 R
Operating profit is derived after charging/(crediting) the following: R TR (A A T & IBE
R
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Cost of inventories FERAK 66,834,568 63,242,067
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments BETRA(BREEEMNE)
- Salaries, allowances and welfare — e ERBINER 792,297 805,112
— Provident fund contributions —NESHK 70,873 104,520
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN BN &
— audit fees —HZEH 7,101 6,974
- non-audit fees —FEZER 1,314 1,702
Depreciation of property, Y - BEREREBITE(HiEs)
plant and equipment (note 5) 122,560 119,633
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 6) B ER(At6) 1,790 -
Net increase/(decrease) in provision for inventories’ 17 & & &1% 11, (R ) 7587 66,129 (54,657)
Net increase in provision for trade and B 5 N Ho b E W Sk TE EEE 1 N
other receivables JHRER 143,094 134,558
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss HNGE R BB (Uezs ), 518 (33,245) 7,037
Note: et

# Change in inventories provisions, which is included in cost of
inventories, were resulted from write-down of HK$66,129,000
(2019: write-down of HK$16,262,000 offset by reversal of write-
down of HK$70,919,000) due to changes in the estimated net
realisable value of certain inventories.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

23. Finance Costs 23. B EH
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAET
Interest expense on: THEEZAERE
— Bank overdrafts —HRITIEX 28 40
— Unsecured bank borrowings —EIRRRITEE 190,247 291,770
- Secured mortgage loan —AIEHIREER 486 856
- Lease liabilities —HEaE 3,147 2,950
193,908 295,616
24. Taxation 24. Bi 18
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated statement of RirEBEaRIB2BIESREIE
profit or loss represents:
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAET
Current taxation ARERFTE
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BAMNEH 7,396 8,392
- Taxation outside Hong Kong — BB INGIA 196,104 219,119
Under/(over)-provision of taxation outside WA FERABRIMIIE
Hong Kong in prior years BETR(BEEE) 534 (1,458)
Deferred taxation (Note 17) EERETE (Kat17) (24,349) (26,494)
179,685 199,559
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2019: EBNEREBE_SSF+=2A=
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year ended 31 T— B IEFE 2R & R AR =
December 2020. 16.5%(ZF—NLF :16.5%) T2 BB -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

24. Taxation (continued)

Taxation outside Hong Kong has been calculated based on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at rates of taxation prevailing
in the jurisdictions in which the entities comprising the Group operate.

A withholding tax of 5% is levied on Hong Kong companies in respect
of dividend distributions arising from profits of foreign investment
enterprises in the PRC earned after 1 January 2008.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong

Kong as follows:

24. B8 (=)

BB

2 5 B B4R 122 0F 7 i 5 BB 2 B i L
ARERTEREERE R EEES S
ZREHE .

ERRNARURFEZIERER-F
ENF-A-HERBRBRZENAEEZ
IR NGB % 2 TATRTL ©

AEEBRBAEN 2 HBRERTER
FRELZHERSBIERNT ¢

2020 2019
B —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Profit before taxation R A E A 1,247,265 1,009,507
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% B EA6.5%TE 205,799 166,569
Effect of different tax rates in different tax TRABBRIEERTRRE 2
jurisdictions o (28,434) 20,155
Income not subject to taxation AR WA (11,112 (6,341)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes BB ME MR ZFHX 10,388 16,691
Under/(over) provision in prior years BEFEEBETR (B
48 534 (1,458)
Tax effect of estimated tax losses not recognised st R FERTHISEE 2 FHIEE
= 1,201 2,674
Tax effect of withholding tax on profits of the ARG BB AR mFZ
PRC subsidiaries k=2 1,309 1,269
Taxation charge BB H 179,685 199,559
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

25. Dividends 25. R B
() Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) FRAELZESRAFARE
Company attributable to the year mEFEEARE
2020 2019
—ECEF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FAT
Final dividend proposed after the end of the A ¥R Bi K 7% # K R HA IR
reporting period of approximately HK22 BERE @225
cents (2019: approximately HK16.7 cents) (Z2—NLF: 16.7
per ordinary share L) 320,100 243,000
The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period RBEBRERRRBKRE N E
has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting R EHRRERARAR -
period.

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) L—BFEREELRE
Company attributable to the previous financial year, AL ERIRS 2 B AR A
approved and paid during the year AEEEEARE

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FER FAET
Final dividend in respect of the previous hE—BBRFERFAL
financial year, approved and paid during ERRS 2 RER B
the year of HK16.7 cents (2019: HK15.2 A E @A 16.7 81 =

cents) per ordinary share T—RF 15.281) 242,413 220,908
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T _THF+_-_A=+—HILFE

26. Earnings Per Share

Basic

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year is based
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of HK$1,067,580,000 (2019: HK$809,948,000) and the weighted
average of 1,413,246,000 shares (2019: 1,420,312,000 shares) in

26. BRREF

S RIN

FRAERERABFZADNAERIZTAREA
JE {5 5% M 1,067,580,0008 T ( — & —
FLE £ 809,948,00058 7T ) M2 BT
2 hl#E ¥ 5 201,413,246,000 % ( =
T— L4 : 1,420,312,0000%)5T# -

issue.

2020 2019
—ECEF —T—hF

Issued ordinary shares as at 1 January R—A—RZBETLER
(thousands) (Fh) 1,458,342 1,457,864
Exercise of share options (thousands) 1TE RN (T AR 336 1,353
Repurchase of own shares (thousands) BEA S RD (T (1,356) (5,805)
Effect of deferred shares (thousands) EIERR ) 2 T2 (FR) (39,076) (33,100)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares as R+ A=+—H27 L@k
at 31 December (thousands) hEFEHE(FIR) 1,413,246 1,420,312
Basic earnings per share (HK cents per share) GRERZF (FRAENL) 75.54 57.03

Diluted

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year is based
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of HK$1,067,580,000 (2019: HK$809,948,000) and the weighted
average number of shares of 1,414,887,000 (2019: 1,422,029,000
shares), calculated as follows:

i
FAGREERBNIZARTEEFTBA
JiE {5 5% M 1,067,580,0008 T ( — & —
fLEE £ 809,948,000 7T ) R 2 N
W19 801,414,887,00001( —ZF— A
F:1,422,029,0000) T E T ¢

174 vSTECS Holdings Limited

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R+ A=+—B%{TEERK
as at 31 December (thousands) e (FRR) 1,413,246 1,420,312
Adjustment for assumed conversion of share R B IR R v SRR
options (thousands) (Fr%) 1,641 1,717
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Rt A=+—REE 5@
(diluted) as at 31 December (thousands) & hntge T (FAR) 1,414,887 1,422,029
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents per share)  SR%EE & | (G REL) 75.45 56.96
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27. Directors’ and Senior Management’s

Emoluments

(@

Directors’ emoluments

The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or payable to

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

2T EEREREEENE

(a) EEEE
RENBNKBENEAATEEY

Directors of the Company during the year are as follows: MommmT
2020 2019
—E-FF —TNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAxT
Fees we 617 804

Other emoluments Empe

— Basic salaries and housing allowances —EAE e RERER 9,839 14,628
— Discretionary bonus —IBTEAL 6,162 8,408
— Contributions to pension scheme —RIKESET 8N 77 467
16,695 24,307

The emoluments of each Director for the year ended 31

December 2020 is set out below:

SEEHE-_Z-_ZEF+=-R=
+—BLFEZBMEHIWT :

Basic
salaries and Contribution
housing Discretionary to pension
Name of Director Fees allowance bonus scheme Total
BEX§HeR Bike
BEMY e EEEH BfsFEA FHEIftER s
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TERT TERT TERT TERT
Executive Directors WITES
Li Jialin EXEZ - 5,460 3,340 18 8,818
Ong Wei Hiam, William TR 109 2,580 912 18 3,619
Chan Hoi Chau BN - 912 1,590 18 2,520
Li Yue £33 - 780 320 18 1,118
Chow Ying Chi Pz - 107 - 5 112
Non-executive Director FENTEE
Xia Bin Efﬁg 28 - - - 28
Independent Non-executive BN JEHITES
Directors
Lam Hin Chi ER 120 - - - 120
Li Wei e 120 - - - 120
Hung Wai Man HAER 120 - - - 120
Wang Xiaolong T 120 - - - 120
617 9,839 6,162 77 16,695
EaexEREREas —z-—za5 175
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

27. Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Emoluments (continued)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

The emoluments of each Director for the year ended 31
December 2019 is set out below:

21 EEREREEENE

(%)

(a)

BEEME 2

BREEFBRE_T-NFt+-_A=
T—BLEFEZME®IMT

Basic
salaries and Contribution
housing  Discretionary to pension
Name of Director Fees allowance bonus scheme Total
2XEe adrNe
B we  REEREN WETEAL BEIGS S ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FER FERT FER FEx FER
Executive Directors HITES
Li Jialin FEM - 5,243 3,257 18 8,518
Chow Ying Chi PRE 85 1,275 2,247 180 3,787
Ong Wei Hiam, William TEN 124 2,594 902 18 3,638
Li Yue ZH - 723 379 18 1,120
Chan Hoi Chau BEN - 883 1,623 18 2,524
Zhou Yibing B—& - 2,920 - 119 3,039
Liu Ningdong 2= R - 990 - 96 1,086
Non-executive Director FpTES
Liang Xin 2R 115 - - - 115
Independent Non-executive BM JFHI{TES
Directors
Lam Hin Chi ER 120 - - - 120
Li Wei E3 120 - - - 120
Hung Wai Man HBR 120 - - - 120
Wang Xiaolong FheEE 120 - - - 120
804 14,628 8,408 467 24,307

Directors’ emoluments disclosed above include approximately
HK$480,000 (2019: HK$480,000) paid to Independent Non-
executive Directors.

No emoluments have been paid to the directors as an inducement

to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office during the current and prior years.

During the current and the prior year, no Director of the Company
waived any emoluments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

27. Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Emoluments (continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year included two (2019: three) Directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.
The emoluments payable to the remaining three (2019: two)
individuals during the year are as follows:

21 EEREREEENE

(%)

b)) AEEBRSHFAL

AEEBFRAEEMEZSALE
BRRE(ZF-NF: =R)EE -
BEZHMEER EXE20 29
TR - FAXNTEBK=R(Z
F-NEF: MB)ALZHMEWT:

2020 2019
b St 3 —ZE-NEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET T
Fees we - -
Basic salaries and allowances BEARF & MOERL 4,866 3,164
Discretionary bonuses BB TELL 9,230 7,670
Contributions to pension schemes RIKEEHEIHE R 387 -
14,483 10,834

The emoluments fell within the following bands: e &AM -

Number of individuals

AE
Emolument band <& E 2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,0017% 7% — 4,000,000 7T 1 -
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7T — 5,000,000/ 7T - -
HK$5,000,001 — HK$5,500,000 5,000,001/ 7T — 5,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$5,500,001 — HK$6,000,000 5,500,001/ 7T — 6,000,000/ 7T 1 1
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #H = —

“EEFA=t+—HLFE

28. Note to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

28. 428

BEREBWMRMT

(@) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash (a) BRBIAIEANEBEEFER
generated from operations EFEZ ﬁ iR
2020 2019
sl —TNF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FTET FET
Profit before taxation ML EDE A 1,247,265 1,009,507
Interest income FEUWA (13,916) (39,992)
Interest expense FIERZ 193,908 295,616
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERERETE 122,560 119,533
Amortisation of intangible assets mREEEH 1,790 -
Share of associates’ profits DIEBE R ERF (23,685) (50,106)
Share of a joint venture’s loss PMEEELEEE 2,866 5,195
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and TEDE BEMEREZ
equipment B8/ (M) 15 (334)
Operating profit before working capital changes BEESHIRIZEERET 1,530,803 1,339,419
Changes in working capital LEELEE
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 R E AU FIR A KB
and deferred expenses @il (961,491) (54,197)
Decrease in inventories FERD 483,925 117,277
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables m%&ﬁltﬂf MFBBAREL
and contract liabilities aEEm/ ) 1,731,067 (13,810)
Net cash generated from operations REPEIE &R 5E 2,784,304 1,388,689
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

28. Note to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 28. % & B € RE WM KR M &

(continued) (%)
- n . —— . TSh & o2
(b) Reconciliation of (assets)/liabilities arising from (b) BMEEBHEEEE) B
financing activities B2 ¥R
Other Other
Lease financial financial
liabilities  Borrowings assets liabilities Total
HESE RE HteREE HteRAR @t
(Note 18) (Note 19) (Note 10) (Note 16)
(hiz18) (Biz19) (Brz£10) (hiz16)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T
At 1 January 2019 R-E-hE-A-H 157,359 7,780,440 - - 7,937,799
Changes from financing cash flows: ~ B®EB4HESE
Proceeds from new bank loans MERTERAENE - 22,149,3% - - 22,149,3%
Repayment of borrowings BERE - (21,915,005) - - (21,915,005)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BEREERERALTD (74,357) - - - (74,357)
Interest paid BRFE (2,950) (292,666) - - (295,616)
Total changes from financing cash flows ~ REBE&HEEHEE (77,307) (58,275) - - (135,582)
Other changes: Hit2g:
Increase in lease liabilties from entering R EIR T FREME A
into new leases during the period HEERE 173,025 - - - 173,025
Interest expense MR 2,950 292,666 - - 295,616
Exchange adjustments A% 2,176 2,281 - - 4,457
Total other changes Hin @ e 178,151 294,947 - - 473,098
At 31 December 2019 RZE-hE+=ZB=1-H 258,208 8,017,112 - - 8,275,315
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-ZF-A-H 258,203 8,017,112 - - 8,275,315
Changes from financing cash flows: ~ ®EB4HESE
Proceeds from new bank loans MR TETETE - 20,181,388 - - 20,181,388
Repayment of borrowings BEEE - (21,371,075 - - (21,371,075)
(Pledging of assets for)/proceeds from  BHEMEK(DEALE)/
secured obligations FiE3E - - (15,933,776) 16,054,567 120,791
Capital element of lease rentals paid BRHERNARES (115,109) - - - (115,109)
Interest paid BRFIE (3,147) (190,761) - - (193,908)
Total changes from financing cash flows ~ BEAE&FEEHEE (118,256)  (1,380,448)  (15,933,776) 16,054,567 (1,377,913)
Other changes: Afh2e
Increase in lease liabilties from entering R EIRET R EMIE L
into new leases during the period HERE 124,949 - - - 124,949
Interest expense MERZ 3,147 190,761 - - 193,908
Derecognition RIEER (12,567) - - - (12,567)
Set-off of pledged assets against secured WBEABERHERMER
obligations - - 13,276,505  (13,276,505) -
Exchange adjustments R A% 6,263 (76,613) - - (70,350)
Total other changes Hiv2ghesm 121,792 114,148 13,276,505  (13,276,505) 235,940
At 31 December 2020 R-BE-EF+-A=t-H 261,739 6,750,812 (2,657,271) 2,778,062 7,133,342
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T _THF+_-_A=+—HILFE

29.

30.

180 vSTECS Holdings Limited

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had commitments to make capital
contributions of HK$69,494,000 (2019: HK$115,818,000) to certain
investments.

Acquisition of a subsidiary

The Group acquired 60% equity interest in EEEIE(FRY)ERA T
(“EZ %" during the year ended 31 December 2020. The principal
Eel=b]

activity of & 2 %3l is provision of cloud management platform service.
The fair value of the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed for

29.

30.

EAREIE

R—_ZE-_ZEF+-_A=+—H ' £%£H
A& THRELE69,494,000/8 T(=
T—N4F 115,818,000/ 70 ) Z A IE o

Wi —EKHE 2 A

HE-Z-_ZTF+A=+—HLIEHF
B AEEKBEEZE(RIDERA
AI(TZEERIN]) 260%%HE - EEFY
CEEEBARBEEEFEARE - &
SERBEEMREEERMERESRE

the Group’s acquisition were as follows:

ZRFESEHAT

2020

—z-%F

HK$’000

FET

Property, plant and equipment (note 5) Y - BB LR (HiEs5) 135

Intangible assets (note 6) mR A E(H6) 23,464

Trade and other receivables B 5 K H b EW IR 1,030

Trade and other payables B 5 R E A FER /I (202)

Deferred tax liabilities (note 17) BETRIBBE(MF17) (2,630)

Net identifiable assets Al FEE 21,797

Less: Non-controlling interests W FEE AR (8,719)

Add: Goodwill e 8,340

Net consideration REFRE 21,418

Representing: (e

Cash consideration paid included in cash flows from HARLEH RS RENENRESRE

investing activities 11,172

Consideration payable at year end RELHAENBRESNRE 10,246
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E LT F+-_A=+—HILFE

31. Related Party Transactions

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

@

Director’s quarter

The Group entered into a rental agreement with Joint Honour
Development Limited, a company in which Mr. Li Jialin (“Mr. Li”),
the Chairman and Executive Director of the Company is a major
shareholder, in respect of a director’s quarter. Pursuant to the
agreement, the Group paid a monthly rental of HK$220,000 to
Joint Honour Development Limited (2019: HK$200,000 from 1
January to 31 October and HK$220,000 from 1 November to
31 December).

Motor vehicle

The Group entered into a motor vehicle rental agreement with
Joint Honour Development Limited, a company in which Mr.
Li, the Chairman and Executive Director of the Company is a
major shareholder. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group paid
a monthly rental of HK$15,000 to Joint Honour Development
Limited (2019: HK$15,000).

License fee

The Group entered into an agreement with Kong Lung Ind Co., a
company in which Mr. Li is a major shareholder. Pursuant to the
agreement, the Group paid a monthly license fee of HK$14,000
in respect of the China-Hong Kong Vehicle License to Kong
Lung Ind Co. (2019: HK$14,000).

Key management compensation (including the
amounts disclosed in note 27)

Key management compensation amounted to HK$64,785,000
during the year (2019: HK$66,386,000).

S1.REEALRS

INTREBEALETZRS

(a)

BEERERARLE

EEER

REBHREFERBR QAR
ARIERHRPTESTEMELE
(IF=EEDBEFEBRREZAA)
H-EEEBIRIL—HEAER
Z o REZWE  AKEEREF
ERAERAF I AM220,000
BL(ZE—ALF: —A—H=+
A=+—H%# A#200,000%
T kt—FB—HBE+-A=+
— B Xt AT220,000% ) °

)t
AEEHEFERBERARA (AR
AEFRWTESTALEAEE
B2 RAR)EIM—HRERE W
# o REBEZBE  AEBEMREF
ERABRARAZA AHE15000%
T(=ZZ— 4% :15,00087T) °

RRE

REBBEBEEELNGT(EZRER
FERR AR — M -
BIEZHE  AEBE P EEH
MEREAXNEEEI4,0008 T
FTHEEEEQRAR(ZZE—NTF:
14,0008 L) °

TEEEAEME(ER
27T 2 £ 58)

EFERN T EEBRAB2AHES
64,785,000 (=& — N &F :
66,386,000/ 7T ) °
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. . agw AN
32. Statement of Financial Position of the 32. R DA Z B AR R &R
Company
As at 31 December 2020 R-E-ZEF+=-HA=+—H
2020 2019
— 7 —= $ :%7}‘-:&
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMEEG 1,279 1,878
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZZE 7 2,115,161 2,115,161
2,116,440 2,117,039
Current assets REEE
Amount due from subsidiaries FEURH B A B RN IE 369,270 126,270
Prepayments AR IE 199 442
Cash and cash equivalents HeRRESZEEY 36,640 22,650
406,109 149,362
Total assets HMEE 2,522,549 2,266,401
EQUITY s
Share capital &% A 13 145,445 145,334
Reserves s 15 234,746 257,167
Total equity HmRER 380,191 402,501
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities REBEE
Amount due to a subsidiary B — B AR FIE 2,142,358 1,863,490
Other payables and accruals Et@[’%ﬁmlﬁi&ﬁa‘tmlﬁi - 410
Total liabilities HeF 2,142,358 1,863,900
Total equity and liabilities Bz BERAE 2,522,549 2,266,401
Net current liabilities REBEEFE 1,736,249 1,714,538
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBER 380,191 402,501
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 EEEN T —F=-—A=-+HBE
March 2021. R -
Li Jialin Ong Wei Hiam, William
ZEM FE4T
Director Director
g EE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BF 7% R R B R (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-—ZT-_THF+_A=+—HILFE

33. Possible Impact of Amendments, New

Standards and Interpretations Issued But Not
Yet Effective for the year ended 31 December
2020

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and a new standard,
HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet effective for the
year ended 31 December 2020 and which have not been adopted in
these consolidated financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for accounting periods

beginning on or after

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to 1 January 2022
the Conceptual Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property,
Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use

1 January 2022

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous
Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

1 January 2022

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018- 1 January 2022

2020 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification 1 January 2023

of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

33.

BE-_FT_FF1-H
=+ -HALFECEM
B RERZAEET ~ 3
ERARBBARETERZ
e 2 |
EEARGUMBHRETERN 58S

HPAREEHABE B -FE =
A=+ BLEFREMRERBTARRA
GANBERRRALZAIETR AN
FAEBAFASEANETR - RRA
# BEATTREAREERE -

INEEIINSR it J5E

2T IR A
BB SRS ER|E 3% —E-—
CHERR 7oy 3 —HB—H
FEt
BB e ERE165R (& —E-=
HERE/E Y 7= —HA—H
iR1E - BEFEEIZ AT
788
BB GRTERIEITH (B T
RIAR) - BEAA-ETT —A—H
—ARAZ A
BEYVBHRE LR T — —E- o
NFE T -_TFHFH —H—H
K4 JE iU
S ERE1R(ER] o=

) HEESBEBEE
IR E

—HA—H

AEEREFEZRFEITINERNERB
RzEHEE - BEFBEMAL  EFH
w0 BB LRI T A EE RS B
BHRRELEEATE -
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B FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MEE=R

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for AEBBERBAFREE 2 EBUREER
the last five financial years is set out below: BEBEHIAOT :

Results ¥EiE

Years ended 31 December

BE+t=-RA=+—-BLEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—E-ZH —E-NF —E-N\F —E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiER FAT FAET FAEL FAEL
Revenue g 69,961,881 66,209,921 62,481,961 54,543,084 48,161,318
Profit before taxation BR & A i 1,247,265 1,009,507 946,999 919,711 688,775
Taxation Gy (179,685) (199,559) (206,172) (203,270) (136,860)
Profit for the year ER T 1,067,580 809,948 740,827 716,441 551,915
Attributable to: AT ALTE -
Equity Shareholders of the 2 Al E A
Company 1,067,580 809,948 740,827 716,441 551,915
Assets and Liabilities BEEREE
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—8H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—EZEF —E-NF —E-N\F —ET—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT FAET FAET FAET
Total assets BEE 29,425,571 24,936,069 23,877,461 20,653,352 16,293,051
Total liabilities BakE 22,599,285 (19,281,597) (18,830,739) (15,818,638 (12,429,413
Total equity BRER 6,826,286 5,654,472 5,046,722 4,834,714 3,863,638

The Group had initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 at 1 January 2018, AEEER _EZ—N\E—A—HBEXRERSE

and HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019. Under the transition methods and B ERELBIFOEREBHBREHELSE

approach chosen, comparative information is not restated. 155,  WERZZE—NF—HA—HBEXRER
BERMBHMEERF 165 - BEMEZFE LR
ERARFE  TEEIHRER -
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VSTECS

VSTECS HOLDINGS LIMITED
BHEAERAERZA

Unit 3312, 33/F

China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre

200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
EETREDP2005%EEhLEBE/EAEI3E3I312E
Tel: +852 2786 1836 Fax: +852 2786 1746
www.vstecs.com
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